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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the corporate governance practices of the company. This statement sets out the main corporate
govemance practices that were in operation throughout the financial year, except where otherwise stated,

The board believes that Norwood Abbey's policies and practices comply in all substantial respects with the ASX Corporate
Governance Council Principles of Good Corporate Governance. Where the Company'’s corporate governance practices do not
correlate with the practices recommended by the Council, the departure is primarily due to the size of the Company and the nature
and operational history of the Company. ‘

The Board of Directors

The Board carries out its responsibilities according to the following mandate:

o the Board should comprise a majority of non-executive directors;

o the directors should possess a broad range of skills, qualifications and experience;

o the Board should meet on a regular basis; and

¢  all available information in connection with items to be discussed at a meeting of the Board shall be provided to each director
prior to that meeting.

On the day the directors’ report is made out, the Board consisted of one executive director and three non-executive directors. Details
of the directors are set out in the directors’ report.

The primary responsibilities of the Board include:

o the approval of the annual and half-year financial report;

o the establishment of long term goals of the company and strategic plans to achieve those goals;

e the review and adoption of annual budgets for the financial performance of the company and monitoring the results on a
monthly basis; and

e  ensuring that the company has implemented adequate systems of internal controls together with appropriate monitoring of
compliance activities.

Independent Professional Advice

With the prior approval of the Chairman, each director has the right to seek independent legal and other professional advice at the
company’s expense concerning any aspect of the company's operations or undertakings in order to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities as directors.

Nomination Committee
The Board has established a nomination committee consisting of the following non-executive directors:

o M. R. Lewis (Joint Chairman)
e  Mr.D. Ryan (Joint Chairman)
o M. J. Jefferis

The nomination committee reviews the composition of the Board on an annual basis and makes recommendations to the Board,
where considered necessary, o ensure that the Board comprises a majority of non-executive directors with an appropriate mix of
skills and experience. Where necessary, the committee seeks the advice of external advisers in connection with suitability of
applicants for Board membership.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Nomination Committee (cont'd)

The terms and conditions of the appointment of non-executive directors are set out in a formal letter of appointment which deals with
the following matters:

duration of appointment (subject to approval of shareholders);

remuneration; _

expectations concerning preparation and attendance at Board meetings;

conflict resolution; and

the right to seek independent legal and professional advice (subject to the prior approval of the Chairman).

Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee consisting of the following non-executive directors:

o Mr. D, Ryan (Chairman)
e Mr R Lewis

The remuneration committee reviews the remuneration policies applicable to all directors and executive officers on an annual basis
and makes recommendations on remuneration packages and terms of employment to the Board. Remuneration packages, which
consist of base salary, fringe benefits, incentive schemes (including performance-related bonuses), superannuation, and
entitiements upon retirement or termination, are reviewed with due regard to performance and other relevant factors.

Particulars concerning directors’ and executives’ remuneration and the company’s executive and employee share option plan are set
out in notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee consisting of three directors, at least two of whom are non-executive directors. The
current members of the audit committee are:

e Mr. R. Lewis (Chaiman)
e Mr.D.Ryan
¢ Mr. P Hansen

" The audit committee provides a forum for the effective communication between the Board and external auditors. The audit
committee reviews:

¢ the annual and half-year financial report prior to their approval by the Board;
» the effectiveness of management information systems and systems of internal control; and
» the efficiency and effectiveness of the external audit function, including reviewing the annual audit plan.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Audit Committee (cont'd)

The audit committee generally invites the Chief Operating Officer and the external auditors to attend audit committee meetings. The
audit committee also meets with and receives regular reports from the external auditors conceming any matters which arise in
connection with the performance of their respective roles, including the adequacy of internal controls.

Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the company’s system of internal controls. The Board constantly monitors the operational and financial
aspects of the company's activities and, through the audit committee, the Board considers the recommendations and advice of
external auditors and other external advisers on the operational and financial risks that face the company.

The Board ensures that recommendations made by the external auditors and other external advisers are investigated and, where
considered necessary, appropriate action is taken to ensure that the company has an appropriate internal control environment in
place to manage the key risks identified.

In addition, the Board investigates ways of enhancing existing risk management strategies, including appropriate segregation of
duties and the employment and training of suitably qualified and experienced personnel.

Code of Conduct

As part of the Board's commitment fo the highest standard of conduct, the company adopts a code of conduct to guide executives,
management and employees in carrying out their duties and responsibilities. The code of conduct covers such matters as:

responsibilities to shareholders;

compliance with laws and regulations;

relations with customers and suppliers;

ethical responsibilities;

employment practices; and

responsibilities to the environment and the community.

® @ & e ¢ o



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of Norwood Abbey Limited submit herewith the annual financial report for the financial year ended 30 June 2004, In
order to comply with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2001, the directors report as follows:

The names and particulars of the directors of the company during or since the end of the financial year are:

Name ‘ ‘ Particulars
Mr. P.J. Hansen Executive Chairman, aged 59 joined the Board in 1999.
Mr. D.M.Ryan Chartered Accountant, aged 58 joined the Board in 1999 and in an executive capacity from

May 2000 as Director of Finance. Resigned as an executive director on 22 November 2000
and remains a member of the Board in a non-executive capacity.

Mr. R.S. Lewis Financial Advisor, aged 57, joined the Board in 1999 in a non-executive capacity.
Dr. J.E. Jefferis Medical Scientist, aged 73, joined the Board in 2002 in a non-executive capacity.

Principal Activities

The consolidated entity's principal activities in the course of the financial year were the research, development, commercialistion and
marketing of medical technologies relating to drug delivery and other therapies. ‘

Review of Operations

The consolidated operating loss after income tax for the financial year ended 30 June 2004 was $14,638.V000 (2003 - $9,410,000).

Over the past financial year the company has concentrated much of its resources on completing the commercialisation and product
launch of Drug Delivery - Laser Assisted Drug Delivery product, the expansion of the Devices Division with the recent acquisition of
the Centurion SES™ System and EpiEdge ™ technologies from Ciba Vision (a subsidiary of Novartis) and the continued progress of
the financial and commercial stages of the Immunology project including the listing of Norwood Immunology on London's Alternative
Investment Market.

Devices Division

The Devices Division includes drug delivery technologies and has recently been expanded to incorporate an innovative device used
in corrective eye surgery procedures. The key business strategy is to identify, develop and market medical devices that incorporate -
the use of a single-use disposable component.

Drug Delivery
The company appointed a US President of Drug Delivery to manage the US and European commercialisation of all the Drug Delivery

technology platforms.

The intellectual property position of the Laser area has been strengthened, with further patents granted in Europe and Australia.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Review of Operations - contd

Laser Assisted Drug Delivery (LAD) _
The current focus for the LAD is building sales in the USA market. First sales in that market were secured in April 2004, with a wide
network of commission-based specialist agents targeting single and mutti-clinician practise and hospitals.

Under the brand of “Epiture Easytouch” the LAD was successfully exhibited at the American Academy of Pediatrics and the American
Society of Pain Management Nurses. The product was well received and product was sold and a number of sales leads were
secured.

An innovative, interactive web-based marketing program has been implemented. The program is specifically targeted at accessing
doctor's clinics and clinicians directly. This highly interactive program is designed to qualify prospective customers prior to a sales
representative visit.

In April 2004, approval was given under the CE Directive 93/42/EEC Annex 11, Article 3. The receipt of the CE mark allows the
division to commence marketing of the LAD in all European countries.

Needle-free Drug Delivery

During the year the company has extended the existing partnership with the Bio-Instrumental Laboratory of Massachusetts Institute of
Technology (MIT), which under the direction of Professor lan Hunter is developing a unique, needle-free injection device. Under the
new agreement, MIT will build on its early prototype concept to create a fully functional device, designed for clinical frials to take place
within the next two years. The device will target both the human and veterinary drug-delivery markets.

Microneedles
The company is currently exploring the use of this technology for a specialised veterinary application. Further development will occur
in conjunction with suitable commercial partner(s}.

QOphthalmology
In the beginning of May 2004 the company acquired the world-wide rights to the medical devices and intellectually property

associated with Epi-LASIK, the next generation in laser vision correction surgery.

The next generation approach to laser eye surgery, Epi-LASIK, removes the need to cut the eye and eliminates the associated
complications. Instead, a unique hand-held instrument (the Centurion SES ™ ) uses disposable separators {the EpiEdge ™) to gently
peel back the epithelium along a natural cleavage plane. This is moved to one side while the laser corrects the vision and then the
epithelium is moved back into place with minimal surgical manipulation. The living cells reattach themselves and heal naturally in a
few days.

Epi-LASIK is a precision procedure, supported by extensive clinical studies around the work. It has USA (FDA} and European (CE
Mark) marketing approvals.

The company successfully launched the Centurion SES ™ and EpiEdge ™ at the American Society of Cataract & Refractive Surgery
Conference in San Diego in May 2004.

Professor loannis Pallikaris, the inventor of the LASIK and Epi-LASIK procedures, will act as a consultant to the company as a
foundation member of it's Clinical Advisory Board.

A Sales and marketing team is already in place in the USA actively selling Epi-LASIK. The first distributor has been appointed in
Korea with the signing of an agreement with Damool Systec Crop Ltd. These have both resulted in sales in June.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Review of Operations - contd

immunology Division

In November 2003, the company signed an exclusive USA licensing agreement with TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. Under the
licence agreement the company will receive royalties on sales of Lupron Depot ®used from immunology applications. All the original
patents on the technology from Monash University have now been assigned to the company Norwood Immunology Limited.

In December 2003, promising data from initial clinical and pre-clinical trial conducted in Australia was presented at the American
Society of Hematology (ASH) and published in leading industry joumal, “Blood". This showed evidence of thymic re-growth and
improved immune system recovery following blocking of the sex hormones through the administration of GnRH analogues.

In November 2003 KBC Peel Hunt was appointed as Nominated Adviser to assist with the listing of Norwood Immunology on
London's AIM exchange.

In May 2004, Mr Rolf Stahel, the former Chief Executive of Shire Pharmaceuticals, was appointed as Non-Executive Chairman of
Norwood Immunology, subject to admission of the Company's shares to the AIM Market of the London Stock Exchange in June
2004,

On 30 June 2004 Norwood Immunology Limited successfully listed on London's AIM exchange at 38 pence. This valued the
subsidiary at $122 million. The company continues to hold 83% of Norwood Immunology Limited. The listing raised $15 million in the

group.
Changes in State of Affairs

During the financial year there was no significant change in the state of affairs of the consclidated entity other than that referred to in
the financial statements or notes thereto.

Subsequent Events

There has not been any matter or circumstance, other than that referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto, that has
arisen since the end of the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consolidated
entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity in future financial years.

Future Developments

Disclosure of information regarding likely developments in the operations of the consofidated entity in future financial years and the
expected results of those operations is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity. Accordingly, this
information has not been disclosed in this report.

Dividends

No dividends were paid or declared since the start of the financial year and the directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of its current or preceding financial years.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Share Options Granted to Directors and Executives

During and since the end of the financial year no share options were gfanted to directors of the company.

During the financial year 1,316,668 shares were issued as a result of the exercise of options held by Directors.

During and since the end of the financial year an aggregate of 6,050,000 share options were granted to the following executives of
the consolidated entity:

Executives Number of Options Issuing Entity Number of Ordinary
Granted Shares Under Option
B. Romanin 200,000 Norwood Abbey Limited 200,000
R.G. Walmsley 200,000 Norwood Abbey Limited 200,000
J.H. Bell 200,000 Norwood Abbey Limited 200,000
R.F. Williams 5,450,000 Norwood Immunology Limited 5,450,000

As at the date of this report, executives are entitled to purchase 1,600,000 Norwood Abbey Limited ordinary shares and 5,450,000
Norwood Immunology Limited ordinary shares as follows:

The following Norwood Abbey Limited options issued to executives expire on 31 December 2005:

¢ 550,000 options exercisable at $1.50 immediately
50,000 options at $1.50 when the company share price has traded at or above $2.00 for more than 30 consecutive days
50,000 options at $1.50 when the company share price has traded at or above $3.00 for more than 30 consecutive days
50,000 options at $1.50 when the company share price has traded at or above $4.00 for more than 30 consecutive days
50,000 options at $1.50 when the company share price has traded at or above $5.00 for more than 30 consecutive days
250,000 options at $1.50 when the company share price has fraded at or above $10.00 for more than 30 consecutive days.

The following Norwood Abbey Limited options issued to executives, granted on 11 August 2003 expire on 31 December 2004:
o 600,000 options exercisable at $1.20 immediately.

The following Norwood Immunology Limited options issued to executives, granted on 7 May 2004 expire on 31 December 2006 and
are exercisable as follows:
¢ 1,450,000 options exercisable at $0.30 immediately.
o 500,000 options exercisable at 100 per cent of the volume weighted average price of Norwood Immunology shares traded
on London Stock Exchange during the 20 days prior to the date of vesting. Options vest on signing a licence agreement in
Japan.
+ 500,000 options exercisable at 100 per cent of the volume weighted average price of Norwood Immunology shares traded
on London Stock Exchange during the 20 days prior to the date of vesting. Options vest on signing a licence agreement in
Europe.
¢ 3,000,000 options exercisable at $1.00 immediately.

None of the options issued camy any voting rights until the options are exercised and converted into fully paid ordinary shares.

During the financial year 917,000 shares were issued as a result of the exercise of options held by Executives.

Employee Share Option Plan

Further details of the employee share option plan are disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Directors’ Meetings

The following table sets out the number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) held during the financial
year and the number of meetings attended by each director (while they were a director or committee member). During the financial
year, three Board meetings, one nomination committee meeting, one remuneration committee meeting and five audit committee

meetings were held.
, Nomination Remuneration - Audit Committee
Board of Directors Committee Committee
Directors Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended

P.J. Hansen 3 3 1 1 1 1 5 4
D.M. Ryan 3 - 3 1 1 1 1 5 4
R.S. Lewis 3 3 1 1 1 1 5 5
J.E. Jefferis 3 3 1 1 - - - -

Directors’ Shareholdings

The following table sets out each directors’ relevant interest in shares and options in shares of the company or a related body
corporate as at the date of this report.

Fully Paid Ordinary Options Over Fully Paid
Directors Shares Ordinary Shares
P.J. Hansen 21,310,000
D.M. Ryan 4,296,668 -
R.S. Lewis 1,660,000 -
J.E. Jefferis 60,000 -
27 466,668

Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration

The remuneration committee reviews the remuneration policies applicable to all directors and executive officers and makes

recommendations on remuneration packages and terms of employment to the Board. Remuneration packages, which consist of
base salary, fringe benefits, incentive schemes (including performance-related bonuses), superannuation, and entitlements upon
retirement or termination, are reviewed with due regard to performance and other relevant factors.

Particulars concerning directors’ and executives’ remuneration and the company's employee share option plan are set out in notes 5

6 and 35 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses the remuneration of the directors of the company:

‘ Primary Post Employment Equity Other
2004 Salary & fees Bonus Non- Super- Prescribed | Other | Options $§ | benefits Total
$ $ mon:tary annu;uon ben:ﬁts $ : $ $

Specified directors :

P.J. Hansen 520,000 - 62,448 | 45,000 - - - 627,448
D.M. Ryan 65,000 - - 5,850 - - - 70,850
R.S. Lewis 65,000 - - - - - - 65,000
J.E. Jefferis 55,000 - - - - - - 55,000
Total 705,000 - 62,448 50,850 - - 818,298




Directors' and Executives’ Remuneration (cont'd)

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The following table discloses the remuneration of the executive officers 6f the company and the consolidated entity:

Primary Post Employment Equity Other
2004 Salary & fees Bonus Non- Supef- Prescribed | Other | Options | benefits Total
$ $ mon;tary annusahon ben;:ﬁts $ $ $ $

Specified executives

B. Romanin 324,908 - 26,993 25,650 - - 56,507 - 434,058
R.G. Walmsley 288,008 - - 11,979 - - 49,583 - 349,570
J.H. Bell 247,237 - 21,628 14,767 - - - 49425 - 333,057
R.F. Williams 381,925 | 261,094 - - - - | 1,175,495 - 1,818,514
R. Scarrott 120,545 - - - - - - - 120,545
Total 1,362,623 | 261,094 48,621 52,396 - - 11,331,010 - 3,065,744

Indemnification of Officers and Auditors

During the financial year, the company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors of the company (as named
above), the company secretaries, Mr. D.M. Ryan and Mr. J.H. Bell, and all executive officers of the company and of any related body
corporate against a liability incurred as such a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act

2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

The company has not otherwise, during or since the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the
company or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as such an officer or auditor.

Rounding Off of Amounts

The company is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/0100, dated 10 July 1998, and in accordance with that
Class Order amounts in the directors’ report and the financial report are rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars.

Signed in accordance with a resclution of the directors made pursuant to $.298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001.
On behalf of the directors

Mr. P.J. Hansen

Melbourne, 30 August, 2004.
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

Scope
The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial performance,
statement of cashflows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’ declaration
for both Norwood Abbey Limited (the company) and the consolidated entity, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2004 as set out on pages 12 to 44. The consolidated entity comprises the company and
the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the
financial report.

Audit approach

§
é

We have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to
the members of the company. Qur audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards to provide reasonable assurance whether the finaricial report is free of material
misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of professional
judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal controls, and the availability of
persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that all material
misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial report is
presented fairly in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia so as to present a view which is consistent
with our understanding of the company’s and the consolidated entity’s financial position, and
performance as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows.

Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other
disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting
estimates made by the directors.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

The liability of Deloltte Touche Tohmalsu, is imited by, and to the extent of,

Member of
the Accounlants' Scheme under the Professional Standards Act 1994 (NSW). emoer

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional
ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Audit Opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of Norwood Abbey Limited is in accordance with:
(@) the Corporaﬁc’ms Act 2001, including:

()  giving atrue and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position
as at 30 June 2004 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and ’ .

(b) other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia,

L ee Fomparn. ko
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

G J McLean
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Melbourne, 30 August 2004




NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

The directors declare that:
a) the attached financial statements and notes thereto comply with Accounting Standards;

b}  the attached financial statements and notes thereto give a true and fair view of the financial position and performance
of the company and the consolidated entity;

-C) in the directors’ opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001; and '

d) inthe directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable. :

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors made pursuant to $.295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

B On behalf of the directors

"Mr. P.J. Hansen

Melboumne, 30 August, 2004.

49



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Revenue from ordinary activities
Changes to inventories of finished goods and work in
progress _
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefits expense -
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Borrowing costs

Non-current asset write-down

Net foreign exchange loss

Insurance

-Legal costs _
Marketing and investor relations costs
Office costs

Patent maintenance costs

Professional fees

"~ Travel -

Other expenses from ordinary activities

Loss From Ordinary Activities Before Income Tax
Expense

Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities

' Net Loss

Net loss attributable to outside equity interest

- Total Changes [n Equity Other Than Those
Resulting From Transactions With Owners As
Owners

Earnings Per Share
Basic and Diluted (cents per share)

Note Consolidated Company
2004 2003 - 2004 2003
$1000 $000 $'000 $'000
2(a)(b) 193 - 4% 1,037 330
(463) - - .
(122) (99) (122) (99
(5,113) (2673) (3,190) (1,958)
2(0) (1,637) (1,766) (347) (364)
(120) (15) (1) (15)
2(d) . (1832) . (2,830)
2(c) (769) - (326) (1,443)
(279) (100) (188) (86)
(1,484) (566) (877) (256)
(2,073) (796) (1,998) 677)
(555) (263) (565) (226)
(140) (162) (140) (162)
(1518) (560) (467) (405)
- (1,470) (544) (834) (404)
(1412) (470) (933) (426)
2 (14,921) (9,410) (8.961) (9,021)
4 . .
22 (14,921) (9,410) (8,961) | (9,021)
24 ]
(14,921) (9,410) (8.961) (9,021)
25 (10.90) (822)

Notes fo the financial statements are included on pages 16 to 44.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2004
Note Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash assets 23294 6,255 11,865 5,204

Receivables 8 1,570 17 140 165

Inventories 9 3,106 131 974 131

Other 10 469 237 181 236
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 28439 6,794 13,160 5,736
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other financial assets 11 6 6 29,774 19,853

Plant and equipment 12 1,291 1,079 1,012 1,079

Intangibles 13 23,907 11,012 2,025 1,960

Other 14 23,395 19,115 19,016 17,021
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 48,599 31,212 51827 = 39913
TOTAL ASSETS 77,038 38,006 64,987 45,649
CURRENT LIABILITIES _

Payables 15 5,642 2913 2,885 2,802

interest-bearing liabilities 16 7,298 118 55 118

Provisions 17 358 263 310 251
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 13,298 3,294 3,250 3171
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES :

Interest-bearing liabilities 18 5,881 - 86

Other 19 - - 3,278

Provisions 20 139 139
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,020 - 3,503 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,318 3,204 6,753 3171
NET ASSETS 57,720 34,712 58,234 42478
EQUITY

Contributed equity 21 95,725 60,934 85,651 60,934

Accumulated losses _ 22 (42,283) (27,362) (27.417) (18,456)

Capital reserve 23 {57) {57) - -

Parent entity interest 53,385 33515 58,234 42478

Qutside equity interest 24 4,335 1,197 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 57,720 34,712 58,234 42478

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 16 to 44.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
interest paid
Other revenue

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Payment for plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of plant and equipment
Loan funds to wholly owned controlled entities
Payment for acquisition of intangible assets
Research and development costs paid
Payment for additional investment in controlled entities
Payments for businesses

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Repayment of borrowings - lease
Proceeds from borrowings - lease
Payment of share issue costs
Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash Held
Cash at beginning of the financial year

Cash At The End Of The Financial Year

Note Consolidated Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000

Inflows Inflows Inflows Inflows

{Outflows) (Outflows)

(Outflows) {Outflows)

168 19 45 19
(11,774) (6,127) (8,156) (4,614)
225 78 202 78
(11) (15) (11) (15)
65 140 6 139
31(c) (11,327) (5905) (7.914) (4,393)
(318) (100) (312) (100)
70 6 70 6
- - (536) (2,185)
(1,770) (629) (935) (173)
(4,679) 2477) (2,725) (1.952)
- - (5,629) ' -
31(b) (2,218) ()]
(8915) (3,100) (10,075) (4,404)
(170) (36) (170) (3
193 . 193 -
(1,227) (379) (90) (379)
38,485 13,073 24717 11,873
37,281 12,658 24 650 11,458
17,039 3,653 6,661 2,661
6,255 2,602 5,204 2,543
3(a) 23,294 6,255 11,865 5,204

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 16 to 44.



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Framework

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, Accounting Standards and Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, and complies with other requirements of the law.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost and except where stated, does not take into account
changing money values or current valuations of non-current assets. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given
in exchange for assets.

Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions and other events is
reported. ,

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial report:
(a) Accounts Payable

Trade payables and other amounts payable are recognised when the consolidated entity beoomes obliged to make
future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

(b)  Acquisition of Assets

Assets acquired are recorded at the cost of acquisition, being the purchase consideration determined as at the date
of acquisition plus costs incidental to the acquisition.

In the event that settiement of all or part of the cash consideration given in the acquisition of an asset is deferred, the
fair value of the purchase consideration is determined by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their
present value as at the date of acquisition.

(¢) Capital Gains Tax

No provision has been made for capital gains tax which may arise in the event of sale of revalued assets as no
decision has been made to sell any of these assets.

(d) Comparative Amounts

Comparative financial information may be reclassified to ensure comparability with the current reporting period.
Where there is a material amendment to the classification of comparative financial information, the nature, reason
and amount of the reclassification is disclosed.

(e) | Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off
the net cost of each asset over its expected useful life, Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of
the lease or estimated useful fife, whichever is the shorter, using the stralght line method. The following estimated
useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

¢ Research and development equipment 5-15years
o (Cffice furniture and equipment 5-15years
o Computer software 3 years
» Leasehold improvements : 3 years
o Motor vehicles 6-7 years
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

()

(@

(h)

(i)

Employee Benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and fong
service leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of wages and salaries and annual leave expected to be settled within 12 months, are
measured at their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Financial Instruments Issued by the Company

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are classified as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arangement.

Transaction Costs on the Issue of Equity Instruments

Transaction costs arising on the issue of shares have been recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the
proceeds of shares issued to which the costs relate. Transaction costs are the costs that are incurred directly in
connection with the issue of the shares and which would not have been incurred had those instruments not been
issued.

Costs associated with the company'’s capital raising and ASX listing that have been incurred to 30 June 2004 have
been recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the proceeds of shares issued.

Foreign Currency

All foreign currency transactions during the year have been brought to account using the exchange rate in effect at
the date of the transaction. Forelgn currency monetary items at reporting date are translated at the exchange rate
existing at that date.

Exchange differences are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they arise.

Foreign Operations
Financial statements of integrated foreign operations are translated at reporting date using the temporal method and
exchange differences are taken to net profit or loss for the period.

Goods and Services Tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:

i.  where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recogmsed as part of
the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense;

or
ii.  for payables which are recognised inclusive of GST.
The net amount of GST recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of receivables. -

Cashflows are included in the statement of cashflows on a gross basis. The GST component of cashflows arising
from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authorities is classified
as operating cashflows.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd

0

(k)

(0

(m)

(n)

Income Tax

Tax effect accounting principles have been adopted whereby income tax expense has been calculated on pre-tax
accounting profits after adjustment for permanent differences. The tax effect of timing differences, which occur when
items are included or allowed for income tax purposes in a period different to that for accounting is shown at current
taxation rates in provision for deferred income tax and future income tax benefit, as applicable.

Intellectual Property and Patents

Costs associated with the development of new products and technologies including the original patent application
costs are capitalised.

Intellectual property and patents are recorded at the cost of acquisition. Intellectual property acquired through
gaining control of the company’s wholly owned subsidiaries is recorded at its fair value upon acquisition. The
directors gave due consideration to the technical and commercial life of the intellectual property and patents to
determine their useful life. In the opinion of the directors the inteflectual property does not have a finite useful life.

Patents are amortised on a straight line basis so as to write off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life.
Amortisation of the intellectual property begins upon the commercialisation of the related project and continues over
the period in which the corresponding benefits are expected to arise. The following useful lives are used in the
calculation of amortisation: :

¢ Patents & Intellectual Property 10 years

The directors regularly review the carrying value of the intellectual property and patents to ensure its carrying value
does not exceed its recoverable amount.

Patent renewal costs are written off as an expense as they are incurred.
Interest-Bearing Liabilities

Bank loans are recorded at an amount equal to the net proceeds received. Interest expense is recognised on an
accrual basis.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed
and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventory on hand by the method most appropriate to each

~ Pparticular class of inventory. Inventory is valued on a first in first out basis.

Investments

Investments are recorded at cost. Dividend revenue is recognised on a receivable basis. Interest revenue is
recognised on an accrual basis. )
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd

(o)

(P)

(@

Leased Assets

Leased assets classified as finance leases are capitalised as fixed assets. The amount initially brought to account is
the present value of minimum lease payments. A finance lease is one which effectively transfers from the lessor to
the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased property.

Capitalised leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful iife of the asset.

Finance lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of lease liability over the term of the
lease. The interest expense is determined by applying the interest rate implicit in the lease to the outstanding lease
liability at the beginning of each lease payment period.

Operating lease payments are charged as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease Incentives

in the event that lease incentives are received to enter into non-cancellable operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. Lease payments are allocated between rental expense, reductlon of the liability and, where
appropriate, interest expense over the term of the lease.

Surplus Lease Space
In the events that premises leased by the consolidated entity pursuant to a non-cancellable operating lease are

identified as surplus to the needs of the consolidated entity, a liability and expense are recognised equal to the total
expected outlay relating to the surplus space.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the financial statements of all entities that
comprise the consolidated entity, being the company (the parent entity) and it's controlled entities as defined in
accounting standard AASB 1024 “Consolidated Accounts”. A list of controlled entities appears in note 32 to the
financial statements. Consistent accounting policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements,

The consolidated financial statements include the information and results of each controlled entity from the date on
which the company obtains control and until such time as the company ceases to control such entity.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, and unrealised
profits arising within the consolidated entity are eliminated in full.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of consolidated
benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obfigation. Where a
provision is measured using the cashflows estimated 1o settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those future cashflows.

Dividends

A provision is recognised for dividends when they have been declared, determined or publicly recommended by the
directors.

14
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd

(n

(s)

®)

(u)

Receivables ‘
Trade receivables and other receivables are recorded at amounts due less any allowance for doubtful debts.
Recoverable Amount of Non-Current Assets '

Non-current assets are written down to recoverable amount where the carrying value of any non-current asset
exceeds recoverable amount. In determining the recoverable amount of non-current assets the expected net cash
flows have not been discounted to their present value. -

Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs are recognised as an expense when incurred, except to the extent that such
costs, together with unamortised deferred costs in relation to that project, are expected, beyond any reasonable
doubt, to be recoverable.

Any deferred research and development costs are amortised over the period in which the corresponding benefits are
expected to arise, commencing with the commercial production of the product.

The unamortised balance of research and development costs deferred in previous periods is reviewed regularly and
at each reporting date, to ensure the criterion for deferral continues to be met. Where such costs are no longer
considered recoverable, they are written-off as an expense in the statement of financial performance.

Government grants received or receivable in relation to research and development costs, which are deferred, are
deducted from the carrying amount. Grants received or receivable in relation to research and development costs,
which are recognised as an expense during the current or previous periods, are recognised as revenue in the
statement of financial performance.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue form the sale of goods is recognised once the following criteria have been mest:

e Persuasive evidence of an exchange arangement exists
o Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered

e The buyers’ price is fixed or determinable

¢ Collectibility is reasonably assured.

Disposal of assets
Revenue form the disposal of other assets is recognised when the consolidated entity has passed contro! of the

other assets to the buyer. '

Royatties
Royalty revenue is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.

Liabilities Forgiven
The gross amount of a fiability forgiven by a credit provider is recognised as revenue.

5
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd

v)

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Accounting Standards

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Council's strategic directive, Norwood Abbey Limited will be required to
prepare financial statements that comply with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards
("A-IFRS") for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Accordingly, Norwood Abbey Limited's

- first half-year reported under A-IFRS wil be for the half-year reporting period ended 31 December 2005, and its first

annual financial report prepared under A-IFRS will be for the year ended 30 June 2006.

At the date of this report, the directers of Norwood Abbey Limited have not yet finalised a high-level assessment of
the impact of A-IFRS on the consolidated entity, and consequently have not yet determined how they are going fo

- manage the transition to A-IFRS. However, directors are monitoring the developments of A-IFRS and the potential

impact it will have on the consolidated entity, and expect to complete an impact study and commence a plan to
prepare the consolidated entity to be A-IFRS compliant shortly.

While no decision has yet been made as to the policy altemnatives to be applied or the extent to which it will affect the
consolidated entity, the directors of Norwood Abbey Limited have identified the following as being the key
accounting policy differences expected to arise on transitioning to A-IFRS:

Share-based payment

~ Share-based compensation forms part of the remuneration of employees of the consolidated entity (including

executives) as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The consolidate entity does not recognised an
expense for any share-based compensation granted. Under IFRS, the consolidated entity will be required to
recognise an expense for such share-based compensation.

Research and development

As disclosed in note 1(1), research and development costs are deferred to the extent that they are expected, beyond
any reasonable doubt, to be recoverable. Under A-IFRS, research costs will no longer be permitted to be deferred
and will be immediately expensed. While development costs may still be deferred, more stringent recognition
requirements apply. Accordingly, opening retained eaming will be decreased to the extent of any deferred research
costs and any development costs that may need to be written off. On an ongoing basis, the effect of the change is
that it may be more difficult to capitalise such costs, resulting in a lower net asset balance sheet position as
compared to under current Australian GAAP, and creating volatility in the profit and loss as more costs will have to
be expensed as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to A-IFRS, the entity has several options in the determination of the cost of each tangible asset, and
can also elect to use the cost or fair value basis for the measurement of each class of property, plant and equipment
after transition. At the date of this report, the entity has not decided which option' and measurement basis will be
adopted and the likely impacts therefore cannot be determined.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES contd

(v) . Adoption of International Financial Reporting Accounting Standards cont’'d

Impairment of assets

Non-current assets are written down to recoverable amount when the asset's carrying amount exceeds recoverable
amount, Historically, although not mandated, Norwood Abbey Limited has not discounted cash fiows in determining
the recoverable amount of its non-cument assets.

Under A-IFRS, both current and non-current assets, including property, plant and equipment previously excluded as

- they were measured on a fair value basis, are tested for impairment. In addition, A-IFRS has a more prescriptive
impairment test, and requires discounted cash flows to used where value in use is used to assess recoverable
amount. Consequently, on adoption of A-IFRS, a further impairment of certain assets may need to be recognised,
thereby decreasing the opening retained eamings and the carrying amount of assets — the consolidated entity has
not yet determined the impact of the change in accounting policy for future financial reports, as any impairment or
reversal will be affected by future conditions.

Income fax

- The consolidated entity currently recognises deferred taxes by accounting for the differences between accounting
profits and taxable income, which give rise to ‘permanent and timing’ differences. Under IFRS, deferred taxes are
measured by reference to the ‘temporary differences’ determined as the difference between the carrying amount and
the tax base of assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet.

The consolidated entity has carried forward tax losses which have not been recognised as deferred tax assets as
they do not satisfy the 'virtually certain’ criteria under current Australian GAAP (refer note 4(b)). Under A-IFRS, it

may be easier to recognise these tax losses as deferred tax assets as they are recognised based on a ‘probable’
recognition criteria. '

Business combinations

Historically, the acquisition of an entity or operation is accounted for under the purchase method of accounting by
the legal acquirer. Where consolidated accounts are prepared, the assets and liabilities purchased are initially -
recognised at their fair values in the consolidated accounts.

Under A-IFRS, the purchase method of accounting must be applied where there is a business combination,
however, not all acquisitions will qualify as a business combination, and as such the purchase method of accounting
for these acquisitions will no longer be appropriate. In addition, the legal acquirer may not be the ‘acquirer per A-
IFRS, and the consolidated accounts may consequently reflect the fair values of the legal acquirer’s assets and
liabilities rather than the fair value of the assets and iabilities of the entity legally acquired.

Furthermore, there are a number of recognition and measurement differences that result in relation to assets and
liabifities acquired in a business combination, particularly in relation to intangible assets and restructuring provisions.
Acquired contingent liabilities must also be recognised at their fair values where acquired in a business combination.

The impact of these changes in accounting policy on first-time adoption will depend on whether the consolidated
entity will elect to adopt the exemption available to it to not reopen past acquisitions and retrospectively account for
them. On an ongoing basis, this change in policy may significantly affect the profit and loss and balance sheet, as
the accounting group forward significantly differs from the manner in which such transactions are treated under
current Australian GAAP.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$:000 $000 $'000 $'000
2. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES :
Loss from ordinary activities before income tax includes
the following items of revenue and expense:
(a) Operating revenue
Sales of goods 1,575 109 - 109
Interest revenue - other entities 224 74 209 74
Net foreign exchange gain - 106 - -
Grants received 56 106 - 106
Management fee - - 750 -
Other income 9 5 8 5
1,864 400 967 294
(b) Non-operating revenue
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 70 6 70 6
Insurance recovery - 30 - 30
70 36 70 36
1,934 436 . 1,037 330
(¢) Expenses
Cost of sales 420 99 - 99
Write-off of inventory - 53 - 53
Net foreign exchange loss 769 - 326 1,443
Depreciation of non-current assets:
- Plant and equipment 167 160 160 160
- Leased assets 83 95 83 95
Amortisation of non-current assets
- Intangibles 1,387 1,511 104 109
Net transfers to provisions:
- Employee benefits 133 45 66 67
Surplus leased space 286 - 286 -
Operating lease rental expenses
- Minimum lease payments 387 160 387 160
Borrowing costs: ' _ ‘ ‘
- Interest — other entities 110 3 1 3
- Interest - finance lease 10 12 10 12
(d) Non-current asset write-down ‘
Write-down of patents - - 1,067 - 90
Write-down of investment in subsidiary - - - 1,875
Write-down of receivable from subsidiary - - - 100
Write-down of research & development costs - 765 - 765
- 1,832 - 2,830
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SALE OF ASSETS

Sale of assets in the ordinary course of business have given rise

to the following gains/(losses):
Net Gains/{Losses)

- Equipment under finance lease
- Plant and equipment

INCOME TAX

The prima facie income tax benefit on pre-tax accounting oss
reconciles to the income tax benefit in the financial statements
as follows:

Loss from ordinary activities
Income tax benefit calculated at 30% of operating loss

Permanent Differences:

Research & development

Deductible capital raising costs

Write-down of non-current assets

Non-deductible expenses

Timing differences and tax losses not brought to account as
future income tax benefits (note 4(b))

Income tax benefit attributable to operating loss

Future income tax benefits not brought to account as assets:
Tax losses - revenue
Tax losses — capital

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
7 . 7
2 (1) (2 (1)
5 ™) 5 o)
(14921)  (9410) (8961  (9021)
(4476)  (2823) (2688)  (2706)
(281) (186) (107) (169)
(157) (26) {26) (26)
. 320 . 27
184 456 180 35
4,730 2259 2,641 2,839
15,184 10,454 11,884 9,243
149 149 149 149
15333 10603 12,033 9,392




NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

INCOME TAX cont'd

The taxation benefits of tax losses and timing differences not brought to account will only be obtained if;
a) assessable income is derived of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions to be
realised;
b) conditions for deductibility imposed by the law are complied with; and
¢) nochanges in the tax legislation adversely affect the realisation of the benefit of the deductions.

Tax Consolidation System

Legislation to allow groups, comprising a parent entity and its Australian resident wholly-owned entities, to elect to consolidate
and be treated as a single entity for income tax purposes was substantively enacted on 21 October 2002, This legislation,
which includes both mandatory and elective elements, is applicable to the company. The impact of the mandatory elements of
the tax consolidation system on existing deferred tax balances of the consolidated entity has been estimated based on
reasonable best estimates.

The directors have elected for those entities within the consolidated entity that are wholly-owned Australian resident entities to
be taxed as a single entity from 1 July 2003. The implementation of the tax consolidation system has not yet been formally
notified to the Australian Taxation Office. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group for the purposes of the tax
consolidation system is Norwood Abbey Limited.

The financial effect of the adoption of the tax consolidation system has been recognised in the financial statements, and did not

give rise to any adjustment to the head entity as the wholly-owned Australian resident entities were dormant at 1 July 2003 and
in a tax neutral position.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

5. DIRECTORS' AND EXECUTIVES REMUNERATION

The directors and executives information has been prepared in accordance wnh the new Accounting Standard AASB 1046 “Directors

and Executives Disclosures by Disclosing Entities”.

The specified directors of Norwood Abbey Limited during the year were:
e  P.J. Hansen (Executive Chairman)
¢  D.M. Ryan {Non-executive)
¢ R.S. Lewis (Non-executive)
¢ J.E. Jefferis (Non-executive)

The specified executives of the Consolidated entity during the year were:

-« B. Romanin (Senior Vice President Corporate Development — Norwood Abbey Limited)
R.G. Walmsley (Chief Executive Officer Devices Group) '
J.H. Bell (Chief Operating Officer and Joint Company Secretary - Norwood Abbey Limited)
R.F. Williams (Chief Executive Officer - Norwood Immunology Limited)
R.Scarrott (Chief Financial Officer - Norwood Immunology Limited)

Speclfled director’s and specified executive’s remuneration

- The remuneration committee reviews the remuneration packages of all specified directors and specified executives on an annual basus
~ and makes recommendations to the board. Remuneration packages are reviewed and determined with due regard to current market

rates and are benchmarked against comparable industry salaries adjusted by a performance factor to reflect changes in the

performance of the company.
Prima Post Employment Equity Other
2004 Salary & fees Bonus Non- Super- Prescribed | Other Options benefits Total
$ $ mon;taly annusaﬁon ben;ﬁts $ $ $ $

Specified directors

P.J. Hansen 520,000 - 62,448 45,000 - - - - 627,448

D.M. Ryan 65,000 - - " 5,850 - - - - 70,850

R.S. Lewis 65,000 - - - - - - - 65,000
| J.E. Jefferis 55,000 - - - - - - - 55,000

Total 705,000 - 62,448 50,850 - - - - 818,298

Specified executives

B. Romanin (i) 324,908 - 26,993 25,650 - - 56,507 - 434,058 |

R.G. Walmsley (i) 288,008 - - 11,979 - - ‘49,583 - 349,570

J.H. Bell (i) 247,237 - 21,628 14,767 - - £ 49,425 - 333,057

R.F. Williams (i) (iii) 381,925 | 261,094 - - - -1 1,175,495 -| 1,818,514

R. Scarrott 120,545 - - - - - - - 120,545

Total 1,362,623 | 261,094 48,621 52,396 - -1 1,331,010 - | 3,055,744

(i) Mr B. Romanin, Mr R.G. Walmsley and Mr J Bell were granted share options on 11 August 2003. Further detalls of options contained

in note 6 and note 35.

(i) Under the terms of the contract of engagement for Mr R.F. Williams a cash bonus was paid in two mstalments on 12 March 2004
and 23 June 2004. The bonus was paid on successful completion of negotiations and signing of an exclusive licensing agreement with
TAP Pharmaceutical Products Inc. for the USA.
(iii) Mr R.F. Williams was granted options in Norwood Immunology Limited on 7 May 2004 in consideration for providing services under
a Consultancy Agreement. Milestones governing the vesting of these options to Mr Williams included gaining Admlssmn to London’s
AIM exchange and the signing of additional licence agreements covering territories other than the USA .




NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

EMPLOYEE OPTION PLAN

2004 2003

No. No.
Balance at beginning of the financial year 481600 535,600
Granted during the year 422,200 -
Exercised during the year (13,000) -
Lapsed during the year (69,200 (54,000)
Balance at the end of the financial year 831,600 481,600

The company has an ownership-based remuneration scheme for employees. In accordance with the provisions of the scheme,
as approved by shareholders at a general meeting, all eligible employees are entitled to participate in the scheme.

All employees and executives are eligible to participate in the scheme while they remain employed by the company. Upon
becoming ineligible, participants have thirty days to exercise any vested options after which any unexercised or unvested
options will be cancelled by the plan administrators. Where an employee becomes ineligible to participate in the scheme any
options that have not vested to the employee at that date will be cancelled by the company. Options that have vested to an
employee but remain unexercised will be cancelied 30 days from the date of ineligibility.

Tranche 1
On 2 August 2000 a first franche of 633,800 options were issued to eligible employees with an exercise price of $1.50 and
expire 31 December 2004. Under the rules of the plan the number of options issued was reduced during the year ending 30
June 2002 to 535,600 and reduced during the year ending 30 June 2003 to 481,600, for lapsed options. During the year ended
30 June 2004 tranche 1 options were further reduces by 59,200 options in terms of the rules of the plan. The balance of
Tranche 1 options at 30 June 2004 was 422,400. '

Each employee's options vest as follows, 20%, 20%, 30% and 30% after 12, 24, 35, and 48 months respectively, from the date
of admission of the company to the official list of the Australian Stock Exchange. Once exercised, the issued shares will rank
equally with alf other issued shares in the company.

Tranche 2

On 4 August 2003 a second tranche of 422,200 options was issued to eligible employees. The issue of these options ensures
that all eligible employees are participating in the scheme as approved by shareholders. The second tranche was issued with
an exercise price of $1.20 and expire 31 December 2004. On 4 March 2004, 13,000 tranche 2 options were exercised with a
fair value of $16,640 and $15,600 consideration received. The fair value of shares received at the date of their issue is
measured as the market value at close of trade on the date of their issue. The balance of Tranche 2 options at 30 June 2004
was 408,200.

The directors of the company, being eligible employees under the employee option plan rules, are entitled to participate in
allocations. It was determined by the directors that they would exclude themselves from the allocations of employee options.

The fair value of the options at grant date is not recognised in the Financial Statements except for the purposes of determining
executives and directors remuneration in respect of the financial year as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements. The
market value of the company's ordinary shares at 30 June 2004 was $0.91 based on the share price quoted on the ASX at that
date. '

The company does not have an executive share option plan, however options are held by the executives. For the details and
basis of these holdings, refer to the directors report and note 35 (related parties) to the financial statements.

None of the options issued carry any voting rights until the options are exercised and converted into fully paid ordinary shares.
All options convert at a rate of one option to one fully paid ordinary share.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Auditing the financial report
Other services

CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Goods and services tax (GST) recoverable
Interest receivable
Other receivables

CURRENT INVENTORIES

Raw materials - at cost
Work in progress ~ at cost
Finished goods — at cost

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments

OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

At cost:

Shares and options

Shares in controlled entities

Non-trade receivables from wholly owned controlled entities

"N

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$ $ $ $
122575 64,150 77430 64,150
131,792 7,150 74,150 7,150
254,367 71,300 151,580 71,300
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $000 §000 - $000
1400 . 92 62 92
130 . 32 B 32
8 i 8 i
32 47 32 41
1,570 171 140 165
861 37 880 37
7 . 71 :
2,154 94 23 94
3,106 131 974 131
469 237 181 236
6 6 6 6
: 17,779 4,873
- 11,989 14,974
6 6 29,774 19,853




NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO TH E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

12. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross Carrying Value
Balance at 30 June 2003
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2004

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Balance at 30 June 2003

Disposals

Depreciation expense

Balance at 30 June 2004

Net Book Value
As at 30 June 2003

As at 30 June 2004

Gross Carrying Value
Balance at 30 June 2003
Additions

Disposals

Balance at 30 June 2004

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation
Balance at 30 June 2003

Disposals

Depreciation expense

Balance at 30 June 2004

Net Book Value
As at 30 June 2003
As at 30 June 2004

Consolidated

Leasehold

Plant and Equipment Under
Improvements Equipment Finance Lease -
at cost at cost TOTAL -
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
169 1937 230 2,336
. 567 107 664
- (66) (94) (160)
169 2,428 243 2,840
(125) (1,004) (128) (1,257)
- 34 Y 95
(44) (305) -~ (38) (387)
(169) (1,275) (105) (1,549)
44 933 102 1079
- 1,163 138 1,291
Company
Leasehold Plant and Equipment Under
Improvements Equipment Finance Lease :
at cost at cost TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
169 1,937 230 2,336
- 271 107 378
- {66) 94) (160)
169 2,142 243 2,554
(125) (1,004) (128) (1,257)
- H 61 85
(44) (298) {38) {380)
(169) (1,268) (105) (1,542)
44 933 102 1,079
- 1,012

874 138
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13.

14,

15.

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd)

Aggregate depreciation allocated, whether recognised

as an expense or capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of other assets during the year-

Plant and equipment
Leased assets
Leasehold improvements

INTANGIBLES

Intellectual property at cost

Patents at cost
Patents at cost on acquisition
Accumulated amortisation

Aggregate amortisation allocated, whether recognised as an
expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of other
assets during the year

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Deferred research and development costs
Accumulated amortisation

Research and development costs incurred during the year and
deferred to future years before crediting any related grants

Aggregate amortisation allocated, whether recognised as an
expense or capitalised as part of the carrying amount of other
assets during the year

CURRENT PAYABLES

Trade payables
Accrued payables

an

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 _ 2004 2003
$000 $000 $000 000
305 370 298 370
38 38 38 38
44 57 44 57
387 265 380 265
1,450 600 600 600
7,030 4,208 1,888 1,719
04% 11824 : :
(7007 (5620) (463) (359)
22457 10412 1425 1360
23907 11012 2025 1.960
1,387 1,511 104 109
28395 19115 19016 17021
7339 19115 9016 17,021
4.280 3028 1995 2,803
3,083 2475 1,481 2475
2559 438 1,404 327
5642 2013 2885

2,802
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17.

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Secured: .

Notes payable (i)

Finance lease liability (ii) (note 27)

(i) Secured by the assets acquired in the purchase of the
Epi-Lasik business and ali proceeds thereof.

(i) Secured by the assets leased, the current market value of
which exceeds the value of the finance lease liability.

CURRENT PROVISIONS
Employee benefits (i)
Surplus lease space (ii) (note 27)

(i} The aggregate employee benefit liability recognised and
included in the financial statements is as follows:
Provision for employee benefits:

- Current

Number of employees at end of the financial year

(i) Surplus Lease space
Balance at the beginning of the financial year
- Current
- Non current

- Reduction arising from payments/other sacrifices of future
economic benefit ‘

- Provision created in respect of the non-cancellable
operating lease for office space

Balance at the end of the financial year

- Current

- Non current

24

CONSOLIDATED

COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
7,243 . . -
55 118 55 118
7298 118 55 118
260 221 . 212 209
98 42 8 42
358 263 310 251
260 21 212 209
No. No. “No. No.
28 23 22 21
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
42 76 42 76
. 42 . 42
42 118 42 118
(91) (76) (91) (76)
286 286
98 42 8 42
139 - 139 -
237 42 237 42




18.

19,

20.

21.

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
' $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
NON-CURRENT INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Secured:
Note Payable (i) 5,795 - - -
Finance lease liability (ii) (note 27) 86 - 86
5,881 86
(i) Secured by the assets acquired in the purchase of the Epi-
Lasik business and all proceeds thereof.
(if) Secured by the assets leased, the current market vaiue of
which exceeds the value of the finance lease liability.
NON-CURRENT OTHER LIABILITIES
Unsecured loans from wholly owned controlied entities - - 3,278 -
NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Surplus lease space (notes 17(ii) and 27) 139 139
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Fully paid ordinary shares
161,041,403 fully paid ordinary shares (2003: 125,143,351) 85,651 58,523 85,651 58,523
Nil partly paid shares (2003: 7,090,909) - 2411 - 2,411
85,651 60,934 85,651 60,934
Other
Gain arising on issue of shares by subsidiary to outside -
shareholders 10,074 - - -
95,725 60,934 85,651 60,934
COMPANY COMPANY
2004 2003
No. No.
‘000 $°000 ‘000 $'000
Fully Paid Ordinary Shares !
Balance at beginning of financial year 125,143 58,523 107,537 48,458
Shares issued 28,807 22,873 17,606 9,462
Partly paid ordinary shares now fully paid 7,091 4,255 - -
Share issue costs - - (397)
Balance at end of financial year 161,041 85,651 125,143 58,623

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.

12



NORWOQOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

COMPANY ‘ COMPANY

2004 2003

No. No.

‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (cont'd
Partly Paid Ordinary Shares ‘
Balance at beginning of financial year - 7,091 2411 - -
Shares issued’ - - 7,091 241
Partly paid ordinary shares now fully paid (7,091) (2411)
Balance at end of financial year ' - - 7,091 2411

Partly paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share but do not carry the right to dividends.

Share Options
Details of the employee option plan are contained in note 6 to the financial statements and details of directors holdings are
contained in note 35(¢) to the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2004 2003 2004 2003 -
$°000 $000 - $'000 $'000
ACCUMULATED LOSSES
Balance at beginning of financial year (27,362) (17,952 (18,456) (9,435)
Net loss (14,921) (9,410 (8,961) (9,021)
Dividends provided or paid - - - -
Balance at end of financial year . {42,283) (27,362) {27,417) (18,456)
RESERVES
Capital o (57) (57)
Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the financial year (57)
Capital raising costs attributable to parent entity holding in i (57) : i
subsidiary ‘
Balance at the end of the financial year : (57) (57)
CONSOLIDATED

2004 2003

$'000 $'000
OUTSIDE EQUITY INTEREST
Outside equity interests in controlled entities comprises:
Contributed equity 4,705 1,200

Share issue costs (370) 3
Accumulated losses ‘ . .

4,335 1,197

i}
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26.

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

2004 2003

EARNINGS PER SHARE Cents pershare  Cents per share
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (10.90) (8.22)
2004 2003
No. No.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue
during the financial year used in the calculation of basic
earnings per share and diluted earnings per share 136,775,914 114,509,943

All options on issue during the year are considered potential ordinary shares and are therefore excluded from the weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share.

All options on issue during the year are considered potential ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating diluted eamings per
share. Potential ordinary shares that are not dilutive are excluded from the calculation of weighted average number of ordinary
shares and potential ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share.

2004 2003

$'000 $'000
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share
and diluted earnings per share reconciles to the net profit in
the statement of financial performance as follows:
Net loss 14,921 9,410
Net loss used in the calculation of basic earnings per
share and diluted earnings per share 14,921 9410
Information concerning the classffication of securities
2004 2003
: No. No.
The following potential ordinary shares are not dilutive and
are therefore excluded from the weighted average number
of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Options — Ordinary shares 27,391,569 53,451,241
CONSOLIDATED | COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $000 ! $'000 $'000

COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(a) Lease Commitments
Finance lease liabilities and non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

(b) Other Expenditure Commitments
* Expenditure commitments relating to research projects

Not longer than 1 year 1,405 2,634 595 2,634
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 5 years 73 1,000 73 -
Longer than 5 years - - - -

1,478 3,634 668 2,634
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

LEASES

Finance Leases

Leasing Arrangements .

Finance leases relate to motor vehicles with lease terms of 4 years. The consolidated entity has the option to purchase
the vehicles for a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease arrangements.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Minimum Future Lease Payments : :
- Not later than 1 year : 84 125 64 125
- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years : 99 - 99 -
Minimum lease payments 163 125 163 125
Less future finance charges (22) - (N (22) (7)
.Present value of minimum lease payments , 141 118 141 118
Included in the financial statements as: _ :
Current interest bearing liabilities (note 16) : 55 118 55 o118
Non-current interest bearing liabilities (note 18) 86 - 86 -
141 118 141 118

Operating Leases

Leasing Arrangements
The operating leases are non-cancellable operating leases over various items of office equipment and leases over
office/warehouse facility. The Australian office lease is for three years with a further option periods of three years. The
company's bankers issued a bank guarantee in favour of the landlord which is secured by part of the cash on deposit. The
operating lease contract contains a market review clause in the event that the company exercises its option to renew. The
company does not have an option to purchase any of the assets subject o an operating lease at the completion of the
lease term.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000
Non-canceliable operating leases.
- Not later than 1 year 377 199 KYas 199
- Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 558 5 558 5
: 935 204 935 204
In respect of the non-cancellable operating leases for
office space the following provisions have been
recognised:
Current provisions (note 17)
Surplus lease space 98 42 98 42
Non-current provisions (note 20)
Surplus lease space 139 - 139 -
237 42 237 42

ac
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Royalties:

During 1994, Electrospect, Inc. (‘Electrospect’)(formerly Transmedica International, inc. which was acquired by the company
on 23 December 1999) paid a licensing fee to Massachusetts General Hospital for a patent rights license agreement. The
licence fee, net of accumulated amortisation, is included on the statement of financial position as patent costs. Under the
terms of the agreement, Electrospect, Inc. will be required to pay additional royalties on products sold which are covered by the
patent right. The directors consider that no royalties are due and payable as at 30 June 2004. Such royalties are to be
computed at 5% of the net sales price in the case of products subject to exclusive licence and 2.5% for products non-
exclusively licensed and 1% of the net sales price in the case of certain other products.

On 14 June 2000, Norwood Abbey Limited entered into an agreement with University of Arkansas Medical Services (‘UAMS’)
to amend the royalty agreement between Electrospect, Inc. and UAMS dated 19 December 1994. This agreement provides for
a maximum royalty at the rate of 2.5% of the net sales of devices manufactured for the withdrawal of blood or the delivery of
local topical anaesthesia using a laser device (capped at $1,000,000 per annum). If a royalty is payable to a third party then
the 2.5% rate shall be reduced by the percentage royalty payable to such a third party except that the royalty rate payable to
UAMS shall never be less than 1.0%. The directors consider that no royalties are due and payable as at 30 June 2004,

On 17 June 2003, Norwood Immunology Limited, entered into an agreement with Monash University. Under the terms of the
agreement a royalty is payable to Monash University on income, from commercial sales or sublicense payments received by
Norwaod Immunology Limited from the commercial exploitation of the technology purchased from Monash University. The
royalty rate varies between 7.5% and 3.5% depending on the number of additional licences payable to third parties.

On 27 June 2003, Norwood Immunology Limited entered into an agreement with Associate Professor Richard Boyd. Under
the terms of the agreement a royalty of 2.5% is payable to Dr. Boyd and his laboratory on income from commercial sales or
lublicense payments received by Norwood Immunology Limited from the commercial exploitation of existing technology
developed. In addition, Dr. Boyd and his laboratory are entitled to 7.5% of license fees, royalties and milestone payments
received by the company from the commercialisation of any new technology.

On 27 April 2004, Sightrate B.V. entered into an exclusive licence agreement with FOS Holdings S.A. a Luxembourg
corporation. Under the terms of this agreement a royalty of 10% is payable to FOS Holdings S.A., for a period of 20 years, on
net sales from agreed products whose manufacture or sale is covered by a valid patent claim in the country of manufacture or
sale. In addition a royalty of 8% is payable, for a period of 10 years, on net sales of agreed products whose manufacture or
sale is not covered by a valid patent claim in the country of manufacture or sale.

Other royalty obligations are considered not to be material on the basis that such obligations will either have expired prior to the
first commercial sale, are capped at amounts which are not material or are predicated upon sales through particular distribution
channels in respect of which Norwood Abbey Ltd has no obligation to sell.

Licence agreement:

On 22 December 2000 the company entered into an agreement with Monash University for a worldwide exclusive licence o
exploit technology licensed from Monash University. This agreement has since been superseded by an agreement signed on
17 June 2003. In terms of this ficence the company has agreed to pay an amount up to a maximum of $650,000 contingent on
meeting various regulatory approvals.

On 27 April 2004, Sightrate B.V entered into an exclusive ficence agreement with FOS Holding S.A. a Luxembourg corporation.
Under the terms of the agreement Sightrate B.V. will pay FOS Holdings S.A. a non-refundable, non-creditable milestone

payment of US$ 750,000. The timing of the payment is dependent on reaching certain Net Sales targets. A second non-
refundable, non-creditable milestone payment of US$ 750,000 is payable on the first anniversary of the milestone listed above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There has not been any matter or circumstance, other than that referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto, that has
arisen since the end of the financial year, that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the
consolidated entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consalidated entity in future financial years.

208



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

30. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information has been prepared and is presented in accordance with revised Accounting Standard 1005 ‘Segment
Reporting’, and the comparative information has been restated in accordance with the requirements of the revised standard.

Segment Revenues
External Sales Inter-segment Other Total
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Devices Division 1,575 109 - - - - 1,575 109
Immunology Division - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - -
Total of all segments 1,575 109 - - - - 1,575 109
Eliminations ‘_ - -
Unallocated - : ‘ ‘ 359 327
Consolidated : 1,934 436
Segment results
2004 2003
$'000 $'000
Devices Division - (4,488) (3,710)
Immunology Division , (4.467) (30)
Total of all segments (8,955) (3,740)
Eliminations - -
Unallocated (5,966) (5,670)
Loss from ordinary activities before income tax expense (14,921) (9,410
Income tax expense relating to ordinary activities - -
Loss from ordinary activities after related income tax expense (14,921) (9410)
Net Loss v (14,921) (9,410)
Segment assets and liabilities
Assets Liabilities
2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Devices Division 44,176 26,829 - 14,269 807
Immunology Division 19,928 3776 2,424 141
Other ' - - - -
Total of all segments 64,104 30,605 16,693 948
Eliminations - - - ' -
Unallocated : 12934 7,401 2,625 2,346

Consolidated ' 77,038 38,006 19,318 3,294

17
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(a)

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)

Other segment information

Devices Division

Immunology Division

2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Acquisition of segment assets 18,732 2,357 16,152, 668
Depreciation and amortisation of segment assets 1,548 1,689 - -
Geographical Segment Information
Geggra phical Segment External Sales Segment Assets Acguisition-of segment
Assets
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Asia 1,168 109 794 - 794 '
North America 407 - 7,829 6,121 3,045 - -
Australia - 43,500 24,484 19,064 3,025
Europe - - 11,981 - 11,981 -
Unallocated 359 327 12934 7,401 5,533 . 4,249
Consolidated 1,934 436 77,038 38,006 40417 7,274

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2004 2003 - 2004 -2003
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of cash
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes
cash on hand and in banks. Cash at the end of the financial
year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the
related items in the statement of financial position as follows: .
Cash ' 23,294 6,255 11,865 5,204
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'd)

Businesses acquired

During the financial year, one business and two entities were
acquired. Details of the acquisition are as follows:
Consideration

Cash

Notes payables

Fair value of net assets acquired
Current assets:

Cash

Inventory

Non-current assets;

Plant & equipment

Intangibles

Other

Net assets acquired

Net cash outflow on acquisition
Cash consideration
Less cash balances acquired

Reconciliation of loss from ordinary activities after related
income tax to net cash flows from operating activities
Loss from ordinary activities after related income tax
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/{(gain)

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of equipment

Patent write-off

Inventory write-off

Research and development write-off

Investment write-down ‘

Receivables write-down

Changes in net assets and liabilities, net of the effects of purchase

of subsidiaries:

(Increase)/decrease in current receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
(Increase)/decrease in current prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in current creditors
Increasef(decrease) in provisions

Net cash used in operating activities

30

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,285 - 41
12,243 - -
14,528 - 41 -
67 33 -
2,720 -
272 -
11,459 -
10 8
14,528 41
2,285 - 41
(67) - (33)
2,218 8 -
(14,921) (9,410) (8,961) {8,021)
1,637 1,766 7 364
645 (106) (75) 1443
(5) 1 (5) 1
- 1,067 - 90
- 53 53
- 765 - 765
- - 1,875
- - 100
(1,399) (129) 25 (123)
(2,975) - (843) -
(232) 400 55 400
5,689 (325) 1,345 {363)
234 13 198 23
(11,327 (5,905) (7.914) {4,393)




NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
v $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
31. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont'd)
(¢) Financing facilities
Lease finance facility, reviewed annually
- amount used 163 125 163 125
- amount unused 187 225 187 225
350 350 350 350
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
Name of Entity Country Of Ownership interest
Incorporation 2004 2003
% %
Parent Entity
Norwood Abbey Limited Australia
Controlled Entities
Norwood Immunology Ltd (formery Nonwood Immunology Ply Lid, formerty Australia 8267 94.6
Mediated Immunity Pty Ltd) §)
Norwood Immunology, Inc. USA 100 100
Norwood Devices Pty Ltd 100 -
Controlled Entity _
Norwood EyeCare Pty Ltd (formerty Norwood Immunology Holdings Pty Australia 100 100
Ltd)
Norwood Abbey, Inc. USA. 100 100
Eliza, Inc. USA 100 100
Electrospect, Inc. (formerly Transmedica Intemational, Inc.) USA 100 100
Sightrate B.V. Netherlands 100 -
Spectral BioSystems, Inc. USA. 100 100

(i) Norwood Immunology Limited

On 30 June 2004 Norwood Immunology Limited (NIM) listed on London Stock Exchange's Altemative
Investment Market (AIM). A total of 15 million shares were issued at 38 pence, raising $15 mllhon The listing
valued Norwood Immunology Limited at approximately $122 million.

Fully paid ordinary shares
Norwood Abbey Limited
Monash Commercial Pty Ltd
Other

2004
No.

100,375,000
3,125,000
17,911,463

121,411,463

2004
%
8267

2.57
14.76
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES
Name of Entity Date of Acquisition | Proportion Cost of
of Shares Acquisition
Acquired
% $'000

Controlled Entities

Norwood Devices Pty Ltd(i) 25 May 2004 100 1

Sightrate B.V. (i) 23 April 2004 100 : 41

Businesses

Epi-Lasik technology purchased from Ciba Vision, a wholly

owned subsidiary of Novartis AG(ii}) 30 April 2004 - 14,486

The results of the above entities are included from the date of acquisition.

(i)
(ii

(i)

The cost of the acquisition comprises a payable of $1,000
The cost of the acquisition comprises cash of $41,000
The cost of the acquisition comprises cash of $2,244,000 and notes payable $12,242,000

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

Significant Accounting Policies

Details of significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which revenues and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 fo the financial statements.

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
consolidated entity. The consolidated entity has adopted the policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The

consolidated entity measures credit risk on a fair value basis.

The consolidated entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

5

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any provisions for losses, represents
the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral or other security
obtained.

Net Fair Value

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements represents their
respective net fair values, determined in accordance with the accounting policies disclosed in note 1 to the financial
statements.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)
d) Interest Rate Risk

The following table details the consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 2004
Fixed Interest Rate Maturity

Average Variable Less 1to5 More Non- Total
Interest Interest than 1 Years than Interest :
v Rate Rate Year § Years Bearing
2004 % $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets ‘
Cash 5 23,294 - 23,294
Receivables - - 1,570 1,570
Other - - - 469 469
‘ 23,294 0 0 0 2,039 25,333
Fnancial Liabilitles
Accounts payable 16.25 21 - - - 5,621 5,642
Finance lease 7.00 - 55 86 - - 141 .
Employee benefits - - - - 260 260
Notes Payable 5 - 7243 5,795 - - 13,038
21 7,298 5,881 0 5,881 19,081
2003
Financial Assets
Cash 425 6,255 - - - - 6,255
Receivables - - - - - 171 171
Other - - - - 237 237
6,255 - 0 0 0 408 6,663
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable 15.75 13 - - - 2,900 2913
Finance lease 9.00 - 118 - - - 118
Employee benefits - . - - - 221 221

13 118 0 0 3,121 3,252

an



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a)  Equity Interests in Controlled Entities
Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in controlled entities are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements. '
b)  Specified directors and specified executive’s remuneration
Details of specified directors’ and specified executive's remuneration are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.
c) Specific director's and specific executive’s equity holdings
Ordinary shares
Balance @ Grantedas | Receivedon Net Other Balance @ Balance Issuing
1July2003 | remuneration | exercise of change 30 June 2004 held Entity
options nominally (i}
No. No. No.
Specified directors
P.J. Hansen 21,310,000 - - 21,310,000 - NAL
D.M. Ryan 3,531,000 - 1,116,668 (351,000 4,296,668 NAL
R.S. Lewis 1,460,000 200,000 - 1,660,000 - NAL
J.E. Jefferis 60,000 - 60,000 NAL
Specified executives
B. Romanin - - 28,000 - 28,000 - NAL
RG. Wamsley - - 864,000 (14,000) 850,000 - NAL
J.H. Bell 13,500 25,000 - 38,500 - NAL
26,374,500 - 2,233,668 (365,000) 28,243,168 -
R.F. Williams - - - 197,368 197,368 NIM
R. Scarrott 26,316 26,316 NIM
- - 223,684 223,684 -
Share Options
Bal@ Granted as | Exercised Other . Bal @ Bal Vested | Vestedand | Options | Issuing
1 July remun- change 30 June Vested but not exercise- vested Entity
2003 eration 2004 @ exercise~ able during the (]
30 June able year
2004
No.
No. No. No. No. No. No. No. No.
Specified
directors
P.J.
Hansen 7,233,336 - - | (7,233,338) - - | NAL
D.M.Ryan | 1,166,668 -1 176,668 | (50,000) ; - - - NAL
R.S. Lewis 466,664 200,000 (266,664) | - - | NAL
J.E. Jefferis - - - - - -
Specified
executives
B. Romanin 825,000 223,500 28,000 1,020,500 | 1,006,400 | 450,000 556,400 256,400 | NAL
RG.
Walmsley 1,064,400 225,200 864,000 | (150,000) 275,600 260,480 - 260,480 240,320 1 NAL
J.H. Bell 305,800 215,400 25,000 - 496,200 486,960 - 486,960 224,640 | NAL
11,061,868 664,100 | 2,233,668 | (7,700,000) | 1,792,300 | 1,753,840 | 450,000 | 1,303,840 724,360
RF.
Williams 5,450,000 5,450,000 | 4,450,000 4,450,000 | 4,450,000 | NIM
R. Scarrott - - - - - - -
5,450,000 - 5,450,000 | 4,450,000 - | 4,450,000 { 4,450,000

(1) Issuing entity — Norwood Abbey Limited (NAL) and Norw:

ood Immunology Limited (NIM).
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont'd)

d)

CONSOLIDATED | , COMPANY
2004 2003 - 2004 2003

$ $ - $ $
Other transactions with specified directors -
The operating loss before income tax includes the
following items of expense that resulted from
transactions with directors or their director-related
entities: ,
Consultancy fees - 31,042 - 31,042

in the previous financial year, DMR Corporate Pty Lid, a company partly owned by Mr. D.M. Ryan provided
accounting and financial services to the company totalling $7,722 on normal terms and conditions. No S|m|iar costs
were incurred in the current year.

In the previous financial year, Lewis Trende, a firm associated with Mr. R.S. Lewis, provided corporate consultancy
services to the company totalling $23,320 on normal terms and conditions. No similar costs were incurred in the
curent year.

Transactions Within the Wholly-Owned Group

The wholly owned group includes:
¢ the ultimate parent entity; and
o the wholly-owned controlled entities.

Amounts receivable from entities in the wholly-owned group are disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

During the financial year the ultimate parent entity provided administration services to Norwood Immunology Limited

_ for a total fee of $750,000, in the previous year the services where provided at no charge.

During the financial year the ultimate parent entity provided administration services to all other entities in the wholly-
group for no charge.

Controlling Entities

The ultimate Australian parent entity and ultimate parent entity in the consolidated entity and the wholly-owned
group is Norwood Abbey Limited. -



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

ADDITIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

(AS AT 30 JULY 2004)

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

e 161 ,041,403 fully paid ordinary shares are held by 4,842 individual shareholders.
All iséued ordinary shares carry one vote'per share,

Options

. 27,391,569 options are held by 146 individual optionholders.
Options do not carry a right to vote.

Distribution Of Holders Of Equity Securities

Fully Paid Options

Ordinary
Shares
1 - 10,000 3,689 61
10,001 - 20,000 581 33
20,001 - 50,000 383 23
50,001 - 9,999,999,999 189 29
4,842 146
Holdings less than a marketable
parcel 209
Substantial Shareholders
Fully Paid
Ordinary Shareholders Number Percentage
Barloma Nominees Pty Ltd 18,200,000 11.30
ANZ Nominees Limited 16,912,052 10.50
National Nominees Limited 13,066,615 8.11
48,178,667 2991

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.
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NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

ADDITIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE INFORMATION

(AS AT 30 JULY 2004)
Twenty Largest Holders Of Quoted Equity Securities
Fully Paid
Ordinary Shareholders Number Percentage
Barloma Nominees Pty Ltd 18,200,000 11.30
National Nominees Limited 17,674,615 10.98
ANZ Nominees Limited 16,912,052 10.50
Fieldcove Pty Ltd 6,309,472 3.92
J P Morgan Nominees Australia 6,199,413 3.85
Westpac Custodian Nominees 3,563,147 2.21
Link Traders (Aust) Pty Ltd 3,250,000 2.02
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 2,575,855 1.60
Bevillesta Pty Ltd 2,466,668 1.53
P.J. Hansen 2,410,000 1.50
Roxtrus Pty Ltd 2,225,000 1.38
TAP Pharmaceutical Products 1,644,471 1.02
Bevillesta Pty Ltd 1,615,000 1.00
Tricom Nominees Pty Ltd 1,475,000 092
Indira Enterprises Pty Ltd 1,412,456 0.88
Ray Brooks Pty Ltd 1,285,000 0.80
Mr Peter Buchanan Simpson 1,285,000 - 080
Perpetual Trustee Company 1,200,000 075
Dorvell Pty Ltd 1,180,268 0.73
La Barge Incorporated 1,150,000 0.7
94,033 417 5840
Company Secretaries
Mr. D.M. Ryan & Mr J.H. Bel
Principal Registered Office Principal Administration Office Share Registry
Level 7 Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
470 Collins Street 63 Wells Road Yarra Falls
MELBOURNE VIC 3000 CHELSEA HEIGHTS VICTORIA 3196 452 Johnston Street
Tel: (03) 9629 4277 Tel: (03) 97827333 ABBOTSFORD VIC 3067
Tel: (03) 9415 5000
Stock Exchange Listings

Norwood Abbey Limited's ordinary shares are quoted by the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.

AR




P11 A2qqy PoomION 007 3ukdo)




P11 A2qqy poomioN 100z Wsukdop

00¢ pud Jeah Aq
Bunsi| depjlews DYASYN 0} HAY | |9AST woyj Buinow jusied =

(#002 O 1) Buonpoid-snuanal mou
‘pozijero1owIWod ad1Aep (QV1) AlaAlieq bniq polsissy 10se] =

(Y002 AeN) Aujqgenjoid pajels|aooe Joj jenuajod pue sojessuab
anuaAal apIn0id swId) a|qeloAe) - SSauIsNg YISV 1-1d3 palinboy =
(Y002 aunr) 19)Jew Y uopuo uo jjo-uids jeiued ABojounwwi| =
| s|epowl
SSauIsSnNq . 8pe|q J0Zel / 10Zel,, YIMm SalBojouyds) Mau uo SN00{ =

p1023al Yoe.l] paysl|gelsa
yum ABojouyosl mau Buizijerosowwod ui padxg =

wea} Juswabeuew paousladxs ‘pauoSLsS =

G00C A4 ul uoljiw ¢ | $V
JO 1SBO8I0} pue 00ZA- SNUBASI UOI||IW L $Y< POASIYDY =

¥0/90/0€ 1e Yseo uoljjlw £g$y~ uoisod [eroueuy Buons

s1yb1ybIH Juswisau

W

% faqqy poomiopN



' pr A9qqy poomioN y00z W3ukdoD

(P17 A5qqy poomioN

‘swiope|d ABojouyoal Asy 981y} pue
‘sjuawbas ssauisng om} sey POOMION



P11 A8qqy poomioN +00z 3uAdo)

soul| ssauisng
o|dijjnw — ABaje.]s Ysu palISionI(] =
1s9q s pjlom yum sdiysuonejai
- Buou)s abreliang| jey) sdiysiouped =
|opoWw ssauisnqg ape|J-i0zel/iozel,
8y} 8AJOAUI Jey) salbojouyoss) mau
YUM sassauisng buibeuew pue bulp|ing =

ABore)S S,POOMION




P17 Aaqqy POoMION +007 1yB1kdo)

A L) >mo_0ccom 1 J0 QsEm:_ mzmm:commmms_ ABojouyoa] -
Em~m>w cozom_c_ 20.}- m_cmmz

_mco:mEmE_ 628_2 uonez||e|oiawwo)) ueisy

~ (uemie]) papiybi — buumoenuep’

salojeloge] ajepuiad — ('S'N) |eonnasewleyd
(HOW) reudsoH |elauan) spasnyoesse - Abojouyos |
E<._v Em>__mo bnig peisisse 1ose]

[N

mu_>>u_5>> slonquisiq siweyiydo Aoy

Em:oOoS_ ajuanbiep 1g — JOSIAPY [e2IPSN |Bqo|D)

: w:mv____mm s|luuR0j JQq — pieog AIOSIAPY J4IUBIOS pUB [BJIPON
81210 40 3_w5>_c3 ABojouyoa ] / yoltessay

aleDah3 YISV 1- am

SJONPO0.Id [eONNdJBULIEU dV 1 — [eloIowwo) -

pieog AOSIAPY OJllUBIOS PUE [BOIPBIN -

b_w_m>_c3 yseuopy - Abojouyos | / yosessay -
>mo_oc:EE_

sdiysiouped Aoy

Asqqy POOMION



" py1 Aeqqy poomioN +00z mdukdon




P11 Aoqqy poomioN 00T WSuAdoD,

Raqqy poomionN



P11 A2qqy poomioN #00g 1yS1Ados §

wia)sAs sunwiwi ay)

anoldwi Ajjejuaswepuny yey} paanpodul
uaaqg aAey saidelay] ou ‘©)ep O] =

Buieg-|jlem pue

yieay wial buoj 0] yjsuaq juediyiubis
JO SI WaISAs saunwuwi paAoidwl Uy =

| 1aoue?d buipnjoul
aseasip bunybiy ul sous}ap |elnuesss
‘'eonud st wvlsAs sunwwi s Apoq ay| =

 welsAg aunwiw| 8y |




P11 A2qqy POONUON +00T 14B1Ad0D




jewiue . ‘ewue 7 rewnue
_ - BunoA e jo snwAyj

pajealn e jo m:,:tE 1 - plo ue jo snwAhyy

s)oam § 0] g Ag @19|dwod si
pue [eAOWa) BuOWIOY X3S JO SABp UIYIM SInd20 ‘[ewiue
pajeal} Inq ‘p|o 8y} ul ‘Yymoib-a. olwAy) paalasqo ay |

snwAy} ay} uo (sbnip anbojeue HYuo Buisn) uoissaiddns
auowloy Xas Jo 108)9 ayl smoys ainbiy Buimoljo} ey |

ABojouyos | pue aoualdg

- pr1Asqqy poomioN 100z 3ukdod

)

:




-

.- pr14aqqy poomION 1007 Ew.ﬁ.&o.u.u.k.._

.nu

H
;

o c:ogmm: EcoEw Qoamo co_asx_r

T ,:E N BT T S z::.:.ﬁm R |
| _ | *OOMNQWD ho wmoo wcmr:ﬁwmb ._GQ mmm._®>< -
o i nip 1o %_m> .
o o . B - . ‘ . : . . o A . : ) . .,. . sm“_ y _a_ T .
. wco;mo_vc_

uawE hoh Qmm\ﬁ £C UmﬁmEzmm ‘uoys w_ umvtmE ojewi] -

| ~ sfewj uewny sbels mﬁm_ ul Emcbmgc_ -
mEU m>;ootm ncm Qmm e v_o asn mc_vcmaxm uo peseq o
| SQEE _m_ohmEEoO -

>n_00 J1av1 _<><._.wm_m

b_c:toaao _m_oLmEEoO

A300Y POOMIO]



P11 Aaqay poomioN 100z w3uAdo 4

VSN a8y} ur suoyeoydde
ABojounwiwi Jo} sa16ojouyos) S,P00MION
9Su89|| 0} "ou| S}onNpoId |ednnadsewieyd
dV.1 Yim jusweaibe aouadl| oAISN[OXa
ue paubis pOOMION ‘€002 JOQUIBAON U| =

JBUME [BIOISWIWOD S S,POOMION |




P11 Aoqqy poomuioN 100z 13ukdod |

- VSN mE ul >__m;_c_ UooEoz
10} dwooul AjjeAos pue sea} asuadl| pue n_< 1 10}
soles ajelauab [jim 108loid siy} Jo uonezie|olowwWo) =

- uolpw
omwwmz Lm>o JO S9ES [enuue yum @oamo uoidnT —

1siuobe HHUD yum m: 9y} ul Jopes| Jaxiew si dy | =
Ajrenuue uol|iq 8°2$SN
aWoS JO anuanel |leqo|b ajesauab ‘sisoLBwopus
10} 10 190UBD Jsealq Jo aje)soid Jo Juswieal) ayy
10} S8UNOJ Jsow ul panoidde ‘sanbojeue HHULY) =

sBniq enbojeuy HYUD pue dv1.

Aaqqy poomionN



P >o£< uooEoz 00T zwsaoo

,co:mEm_amcE 1=
mhmEom__o mc:EE_oS< .
| mD_<\>=._ SosSeasip [elIA =
_ co_wmﬁcm_amcm: Mmollew auog -
pue :(Ajjesouab wmc_oom> pue) SauIddeA J8oue’) —

‘uonelpel
10 >aEm£oEmco Buimoj|o} b_c:EE_ J0 Aianooay -

:loouen) =

- 10edwi Jueoiubis e aAey 0] paroadxo

slI ‘walsAs aunwwi ayj ayeuaanlal 0] Aljige sy
Yolym ur sjuswibas 1axew uo Juswdojaaap [eolulo
~ pue |eroJjawiwod buisnooy st (v 1L Ylim) pOOMION

, s1exJew jueolyiubis
uo mc_m:oou, 5l n__cmhmctmn_



ﬁ_:um o_SmaEms# ayjo
Buinosdwi 10} [enualod

" foe

w:o.~m:.oo&>

D1JJ0 SOUIGOBA
~ .Jeoueo Buinosdwy

 sjuawijeal) Jooued

" M8N Jo asn ay) ui juepoduut
" s1 walsAs aunwiwl SAIOBYS Y

0502 W uol|iw 9°Z O}

‘2|qnop 0O} 18oUED JO 9duapIoul

lenuue SN pelewns3y
e oom.omm

1 mﬁmm?_wocmo [enuue SN

1002 SN ul sjuened
,oEmco uorjiw ¢ L xoaa<

auoje

sn mE ul €00z W siuened
. Jooueo pasoubelp Aimau

‘e uoyw g} porewns

P17 A3qqy poomoN 1007 1uBuAdo)

" pue puom padojersp
Ul uoyjius 9| “xoidde

Uy s1810HNS 0001086
- - "xoidde SQIV/AH

‘Ajreqolb
co____E 2b "xoidde

‘eouswy YUON

faqqy poomioN




p11 Aeqqy poomIoN 00T 1y3ukdoD §
4

VSN Ut ABojouyoa) ABojounwiwi POOMION 8y}
10} uonoajoud Buuqg M ‘dv1 yum diysisuped [erotawiwod a8yl =

1088 ABojounwwi J0o) Bnup Jo 8sn al pa|l} usaq aAeY Sjualed =

~suonesipul
Buinsixa ul asn 10J _um>oan_m >vm9_m ale sanbojeue HHUD =

suoneoldde Abojounww| pOOMION 10}
pasn uaym @iodaq uoidnT Jo sajes uo ajgehed ase saijjeAoy =

wmwmmuujm CO:@N__M_O\_mEEOO

faqqy poomionN



P11 Aaqqy uoo_.ioz $00T W3ukdoD 4

B m\moom ul Umﬁm_ano aq pue
voom Ul 82UsWIWOoD ___>> m_mE ‘SN 1Sl mE eyl Umwomaxm Si |

SAIV/AIH - [BJIA =

| | | au[ooeA olj10ads
Jooued e 0} sesuodsal panoidw 1oj Bunsal - Bwoues - 19oue)
sauooeA [e1auab 0} sasuodsas panosdwi Joj Bunssy - Jeouen)

(1Lng) weldsues} mouew auoq ,mc_o@mvc_,: sjuaied Joouen
| looue) =

npuoldn
JO asn ay) mc_ccmaxm pue ABojouyoa) ayy BuISI[eIDIaWWo
~ pue Buidojanap e pawie ase sweiboud ey _mo_c__o jeuonIppy

Amoom\voomv S[euL _mo_c___o

Aaqqy poomioN



P11 Aeqqy poomioN 100z 1ySukden

m__mbm:< mE:on_mS_ _S_Qmo_._ _umE_< -

m__m:w:< mE:on_m_\,_ ajnlisu| 1eoue) Ez__mOQmS_ la)19d —

- puepazumg ‘|jeseg — [eldsoH AusisAlun —

"V'S'N “elosauulpy Jo Ausiealun —
V'S’ ‘uolsog _.93_55 l|adue) 1aqied-eueq —

V'S'N WOA MaN ‘Jajuan laoue) Buuoeney-ueo|s jeLIows|y .
M'N ‘uopuoT ‘feudsoH mmhn_. [eAoy —

V'SN ..co“m:o,_._ ‘Jajua Jeoue) uosiapuy ‘q'nN —

suonnIsul [esIpaw pue
OIJIIUDIOS [BUOIBUIBIUI JUBUILIS-81d - SUONEIOge[|0)

mco:mhcgm__oo _mo_cm_\,_

Aaqqy poomioN



P11 Aeqqy poomuop 100z BuAdo)

(aymnsuy| Lmocmo J8qieH eueq m> Lo_cmmv hm_vmz 997iQg =
| QQcmo Eocmo uosiapuy g ‘euldIpsiy ho j0id) ulldwey) preyoly iq s
mhoﬁmm;mmé_ _ma_oc:n_

(41818n hmocmo mc:mzmx -UeO|S [BUOWBN) Yulg usp UBA [90JeN 5 .

(ewiysmjo| Jo Ausianiun ‘wswdolanaq
wolsAg sunwwj Jo Juswpeds( oy} Jo J031oaliq]) eweyeye] a)YNSNoA JJ =
(reudsoH 9914 jeAoy ‘1suj yoseasay uejoN >,co£c<v Si9Ael] |ned iq =
(e1nuisu| jeseg .>mo_oc:EE_ oujelpaed Jo Joid) 1epuejjoH Bioen 1q =
| (er0s8UUIN
10 Ausioniun ‘Abojounwiw| uonejue|dsuel} ul joid) Jleze|g 4 aonig iq =

pseog AIOSIAPY O1IIUSIOS PUE [BDIPBIA



P11 Aeqqy poomion 100z 131AdoD

WS 81 apisino ABojouyoal
S mmcmo__ 0} Abajens coQEoZ ayrjouedsi} =
Aunbao

 9%,E8~ sutejal Aoqqy POOMION _ccm (002 aunr)
NIVY uopuo] uo Bunsiy (WIN) ABojounwiwi| POOMION =

/002 Ul uane Nea1q MOj} Ysed sojedionue pOOMION -
moom\moom o)e| ul salyehol 1s.i} wmﬁma_o;cm POOMION -

suonoaloid [eoueuld =

mEm_Em__._ thoeoo w _m_ocmc_u_

Aaqay p %ﬁ@w



P11 Aqqy poomioN y00z SuAdo)

' SI0]RIOGE|[0D PUB SISSIADE OLIUSIOS PUE [EoIpaLl snoibisald
sieal € 0} g — HOYS S| }93JeW O} mE_.._.._ .

| SJOPJOSIP Sunwiwi-olNy pue
mmmmmw_o _m\__> Eocmo Buipnjoul s1o)eW _m:cmyoa obie| Ao =

Lmnmm_ 1Mew gn ‘dv ._. Yim a_c@mctma _m_oLmEEoO .

(w Fcoa:._ sanbojeue HYuo)
sbnip U5 sSse|o mc:m_xm ue Jo osn mau, UmEQma uo poaseq =

woyshs sunwwi ynpe sy} Bueusanfey =

Arewwng - ABojounwiw| POOMION

Kaqqy poomioN



P11 A2qqy poomioN +00¢ 13uAdoD ;

- W05 51808ABPOONIOU" MMM

aleDaA] — saoineq



P¥1 A2qqy poomioN w00z 3tAdos 4

:,o_m_>6 S90INOP UooEoz 0} uonippe Bunoxy =
E:Umooa x_m<._ j0 JojuaAul Aq padojona(g =

sjenosdde

mc;e_ae (e 30) adoing pue (vad) 's'n =

apimpliom sueoiuld Buipes| Aq pesiopul =
“suonedl|dwod pajeloosse

‘pue aAs jo Bumno sajeulwie ABojouyos} MaN =

(SAN:ISAN) DV siUenoN jo Aieipisqns
paumo >__oc>> B ‘UOISIA YgID wolj uoiisinboy «

A1861NnsS UoI108.1109 UOISIA Ul pasn
o__ov_toa B:UEQ Ao cmh_:com _uooEoZ ‘AR U| =

v__m<._-_n_m_ pue Qmo_m\ﬁm_ POOMION]

s



P11 A2qqy PoomION 00z 1S1Ado)

uonendivew
[eaibins fewnuiw £_>> aoe|d ojul }oeq paAow uayj Sl
198ys [eljaylide ay) pue UOISIA 8y} S}08.100 Jase| ay}
‘Opis auo 0} }9ays [eijayida ay) seAow usyl UeIullD =

aue|d abeaes|d [einjeu e Buoje ‘0As ay)
JO 8pISINO 8yl uo ‘wnidyuda ay} ps|ed ‘sjjeo Buiny
Jo JaAe| uly) e sajesedas Apuab Juswnisul anbiu =

suoIedl|dwod poleIooSSe Sajeuiwid 8ousy
pue aAa ay) 1nd 0] paau sAowal Jojesedas ajgesodsip

w1 206p31d3 pue wejsAs ;SIS uouNua) 8y =

Aebins aAjoeljel 1ase)
0] yoeoudde uonelausb 1xau ay) s1 YISV 1-1dT =

MISV1-1d3 SI 1Teypn




w126p31d3 yum s001dpUEH
A.STS uoLnuan

P11 A2qqy POOMION 700 WB1AdoD §

nun j104U0Y 8ALg
w1 S3S uounuan

S w26p31d3
ALS3IS uounuay

Aaqqy poomionN



auwIojBIoXIda

ue paj|ed SI lun 8y "apIs

oyl 0} wnidyuds ay} sanowl
Awab 1nq ahs ay} 1no J0U
soop Jojesedas ajgesodsip
n190p31d3 Byl yum

WaSAS w1 SIS uounuan ay

pY1 A2qqy poomuoN 007 WSukdoD



- P11 Aeqqy poomioN +00¢ W3ukdoD

,_voom mc:w:_ POAIBOB] SONUBAS) )Sid =
G/$SN 10 du sey Jojesedss ajqesodsip

n196p31d3 pue 00000 L$SN PUB 000°'29$SN
u8aM]a( 10} s||8s WalsAS w1 SIS uounua) =

(eanpaooud MiSy1ourur
pasn Em~m>m Bunsixe) sewojessxolol 002G =

Allenuue
opIMplIOM sainpadosd uolf|i € JO SSa0Xe U| =

jueoniubis si Anunpoddo 19x1ew M|SY1-1d3

Aaqqy poomioN



P11 A2qqy poomioN y00z suAdo)

W05 AoGIEPOOMIOU MMM

Aenje@ Bruq — $801A8(Q]

Raqqy poomioN



P11 A2qqy POOMION $00T 1SHAd0D

av
AanljeQ

oniqg
PO)SISSY



P11 Aaqqy poomioN #00¢ W3ukdo)

}JOM 0} Bnup B 10} Soye] 1l 8wi) S8oNpay =

unjs ayl ybnouyy sbrup jo Aianijep teneq ssjqeuy
sbnip jo uoneswiad sesealou]| =

WNSUI0D WINJeIIS - UIYS JO Jake)| J81no ay sio)fe Ajssojured =

unys ay} ybnouyy sbnuip jo bm>__mb JUSBIDIYD pue SNOIOBIIYS Sa|qruy

$0P V1 S90p 1BYM




P11 Aaqqy poomuoN 100z 1y3ukdod

Buidwes poo|g .
SUOILBSUI A\| e
suonoaluj e

St AR
DN QN

"
~

SRR R

/,,w/
S ﬁ////«,,.,///v
5 2

/zfu/%,m,,.,z/
Nk .%,///,,/

AR

RERRRRNR S

e
)

et

sanuiw G Ul N\
BISayisauy [e207 \Akgjo N

w%&%%/%, ,,,,, ,. :.,V///,”N
aAnoay3 3 pidey N

;

v

;
,

’
’

o
S

”
o

e
A

NN
S

R

Aoy POOMION



P17 Aaqqy poomioN 00z 13LAdoD

sjuabe
SO|BS 92INSp Poaseq UOISSILIWOD
pazijeloads Aq uonnquisip adIna(q -
'S]1S0D 92IABp B8zIpIsgns 0] sulbiew
Bnup/ejgesodsip ybiy Buizinn
Aq uoneeuad 19)1BW BZIWIXR -

ABojens =«

Bnup pue sdi ajgqesodsip
JO Sa|es woJj suibiew J1j0id =

so|gesodsip asn 9|buls ylm
osn 10J paubisap 92INa(] =

ABaje.)s [elrojswwon — Qv




P11 A3qqy poomuoN +00¢ 13HAdoD ;

otigat a1



oljI0ed BISY _otmctmn_ co_EN__m_o_mEEoo
| _,o:m_,\,_ 30) mocﬂmm_o Bunaxiepy ueadoing paniodoy =

poAsiyde sojes yYSN 1sil4 —

002 JoquaAoN Ul
(dVV) soueipad JO Awepeoy ueduswy 1B youne| |njssaoong —

VSN Ul Ul pPaysI|geISe }IOMIaU [elojswwo) —
| I9IBIAN S =

uemie] ul Buunjoejnuely peoInosiNg =

oouesed|d bunadrew (M)01S vad =

sSnje|s |eloJowwon) v



P11 Asqqy poomioN 00T 3tiAdo

WO ASGGEPOOMIOU MMM |

(SIN)
wolsAg uonoalu] @al4 a|pasN

A2qgy POOMION



p11 Aeqqy pooauoy 100z 1suAdoD §

Bunssulbugolg ‘joid ‘Bunssuibul fesiueyosyy 'Joid
10ssajold sojnodosieH ‘qeT uoneluswniisujolg ‘pesH
‘a'yd “1euny uej |

‘JoJunH cm_ 1aq

JO co:om:_o oy} Japun (1 |N) ABojouyoo |
JO 81n)Isu| spasnyoesse oyl 1e Juaswdojana

(SIN)
EQ@Am uonoalu| aai4 m__ommz




P11 Aoqqy poomioN 00t W3ukdoD

uied ou Jo 9] =
BULTIISI

Aanjjep jo ypdeq -
Bnip jo adA] -
92104 f1anijep ajgeisnlpy =

sjuawsa|e asn s|buls / a|qesodsip ay) Ajenoied — 1500 MO =

"S8|pdau JO asn ay) INoyym syidap ajqejos|ss Jo
mmcmc ® 01 upjs ayy ybnoayy sbnip jo Alaea apim e Buliaaljep
- JOo a|qeded >mo_ocso9~ Aanijap Bnip e Jo Eman_m>mD

SOAI109(qo Juswdojanap 1onpoid Aoy

magﬁ@zw



P11 Aeqqy poomioN 00t duddos

$002/20 U1 oseyd Juswdo|oAap [Iny OJul paJOIUT =

.>m>zwcc: SUOISSNOSIP [eljiul pue PalIuap!
saniunyoddo — suoneoldde AreulalaA pue uewnH =

(Jans| youaq) adAyojoud _mco:@maO .

pojy sjusled ‘SN =

mnmcmo — AlIsJ1aniun
1152\ wol) (8AISnjoxa) pasusdl| Abojouyoo) eseyg =

WeIsAS SIN Jo snieis



Py Aaqqy poomioN 00T 143ukdo)

9|10l 81elodion poomIoN




P11 A2qqy poomioN 00T WStiAdo

S10]08.1( Jo pJeoq
pue
Juswsbeue|\



| | UOISIA YdIO Wol
'SAIINDBXA J0IUBS Jowlioy pajulodde — s1eDaA3 VSN -

002 2O paiodde — s821A8( UdpISdld VSN - -
002 O — siese] 1ebeueyy [elsusn adoing -
2002 €0 pajulodde — s18seT dA VSN -

elfelisny apISINO SBAIINO8Xd jo Juswiuioddy =

| | yuswebeuew
paseq ‘S’N SPJemo} Juswarowl oAIssolbold =

wea)] Juswabeuew paousladxa .cmcommmm .
uswabeue\

Kaqqy poomioN



P¥1 A3qqy poomIoN +00T WSukd

m__m:w:<
mn_wSo aqg [|Im wEmEE_oaam MBU JSoW 108dX] =

paseq adoin3 pue ygN -
punoibyoeq Alsnpul jeonjnasewleyd -

paynuapl buieq Ajuaring sajepipued 10103l
09X9-UOU dAl30adsold pue Wil Yyoiesas aAindeaxy -

sleonnasewleyd allys Jo O3Jn Jowlio -
NIN jo urewuiey) se |aye)s jjoy pewioddy - -
slaquiaw pleog
JO 8oualiadxa Jo yipeaiq pue Ajjenb buioueyuy =

S10]08.I(] JO pJeoq

Raqqy poomioj



P17 Aeqqy poomiop »00C WFuAdoD,

a|lj01d 8ielodio)



P11 Aaqqy poomuop +00¢ 143uido) 3§

| | | ~ (S00¢ wo€g aunp
Buipua "a°1) JeaA [eioueul; GOOZ 8yl 10} uol|jiw

¥ 1SV JO SS80Xa Ul JO sojes podal 0} sjoadxa
1l 1ey} paosunouue sey (Ty¥N) Aeqqy POOMION =

$00Z yOE duNP BUIPUS SUIUOW XIS BU} 10}
uoljjiw | $Yy JO SS99X8 Ul JO sanuaAal Jodal ||Im
1l 1eyl paounouue sey (TyN) Aeqqy pPOOMION =

7002 ;0 aune
e yseo ul uoljjiw €29V Ajerewixoisdde pjay
|Q:9@Umﬁmc__Omcoolj,qzv>mnp<voo§oz.,

[e1ouBUI




P11 Aeqqy poomioN 00z WSukdoD

s1eaf g 1sed Jeno paquosans Ainba Jo uoljiw 084y~
paiseAu| Aiinbg =

| sloisaAul SN Ag play saleys uoljjiw g ~
Amm___EE\mco:B;mc_v 0l do1 Aq pjay saJieys uoljjiw 9/ ~
siapjoyaieys 00L' ~
Saljeys uoljiw 19} ~

ainonlls aleys =

(4AGVN) BUQ [9A87 DYASYN
(TVYN:XSV) %cmcoxm ¥O0)S uelesSny —
Bunsi] olgnd =

Q:Ho::m _E_amo >®no_< nooEoZ

AaqQgy poomioj



Arewwng

p

1

Kaqqy poomuoN 00t 13ukdon




P17 Aoqqy poomuoN 00T 1y3ukdon

o © washs Aeneq Bnig 991)-0|po8N Ul JUSWISOAUL 0BY -
mmm:a [B10I8WWod ul sjo9loid uo snoo4 |
~ ABajens JusunseAl| =

sonuanal Bunelausr) .
uoneoiidde 1s1) 10} jeaosddy yqgd e

avi -

sonuanal Bunelousar) .
(e 39) mao:_m_ pue (vad) SN c_ sjeanoidde Bunoyiew Aay] e
Aabins annjoespas ut pasn ABojouyosl dAlleAOUU|

MISY1-1d3 —aueDahg -

900¢ oie| ul pajoadxe senusaaal Ajjefol —1oxiew O) swil UoYS
S|eu} jesiulo uewny abels jsen
| wco;m_ogm__oo [esipaw jeuonewsdiul Jofe|N
s|ieolnaseuLleyd dv.L yim diysisuped |eiojowwo) e .
ABojounwiwyj — _,
syibuang [epsawwio) =

Arewwing

AoqQy POOMION




RES

P11 A3qqy poomuoN 00T y3ukdoD

noA Juey |

faqqy poomioN



recod Atbey Ltd ABN 23085 162 456
63 Wells Road. Chefeen Heiglms Vo ctoria 3166 Austral o

< Teleptnne £1 2 9782 7133
\ Fzesimic: 61 3 9782 7334

o
é
LR
§
5
3

- EIYEGe PG

- NORWOOD ABBEYEINANCIAL YEAR 2004
- COMMENTARY

Norwood Abbey’s focus in 2004 was on the commercialisation of its technology portfollo in both Norwood Devices and
Norwood Immunology.

In the past twelve months the Devices group achieved key commercial milestones. Norwood's first drug delivery technology
(LAD) was successfully launched in the USA and is generating revenues.

In addition, the Norwood Devices group made an exciting acquisition - from a subsidiary of Novartis - of an innovative ,
product used in vision correction surgery. This innovative ‘Eye Care' technology has key regulatory approvals in the United
States and Europe and is also generating revenues. For the first time the Company has generated significant product sales
revenue. .

Norwood Immunology (NIM) entered into a commercial partnership with TAP Pharmaceuticals, the market leader in the
USA. In addition, the group was successful in the listing of Norwood Immunology on the London Stock Exchange (AIM).
The valuation of the business on listing was approximately A$122 million which compares to a A$50 million valuation 12
months earlier. The total cost of the investment by Norwood Abbey has been A$1 1million.

NIM and is poised to start key clinical trials in the US mérket

At a corporate level the Company has a strong cash posmon and has continued to expand its shareholder base i in Austraha
and the USA.

In line with the release of its first drug delivery products (LAD) into the US market, the release of its first ‘Eye care’ products
into the U.S. and Asia, and the London listing of NIM, senior executive appointments have been made in Australia, UK and
the USA.

An extensive global search has been conducted to secure new high caliber international non-executive directors for both
Norwood Immunology and Norwood Abbey. The first of several planned new appointments has been made -~ the Chairman
of Norwood Immunology, and several additional appointments to the Board of Norwood Abbey are expected to be made in
the near future.

‘ Highlights for the year:

Norwood Group
o Strong cash position of A$23.3 million at June 3012004 (vs A$6.3 million at June 30t 2003)
o Expanded management team in USA and Europe

e Achieved NASDAQ Level | ADR program and progressing to NASDAQ SmallCap hstlng
Norwood Devices

Sales revenues of A$1,575,000 and forecast A$14 million in FY 2005
Successful launch of LAD (Epiture Easytouch) in the US market
Acquisition of an innovative EyeCare product - Epi-LASIK

Successful launch of Epi-LASIK in USA, Europe and key Asian markets



Norwood Immunology
e Concluded commercial partnership W|th TAP Pharmaceutical Products (JV between Takeda and Abbott), US
market leader v
o Norwood Immunology listed on the London AIM Exchange at a valuation of A$122 million

Comments on the Annual Financial results: .
Revenues from ordinary activities increased by 344% to A$1,934,000 as a result of the commercialisation of lts first Drug
Delivery and ‘Eye Care’ devices.

Expenditures during the year increased as a result of the Company’s focus on the commercialisation of its first Drug
Delivery and“Eye Care’ devices and the listing of Norwood immunology on London Stock Exchange’s AIM.

A significant element of these expenditures represented non-recurring costs.

Marketing - major contributors to marketing costs included
~e  Product Launch of LAD (Epiture Easytouch)
» Product Launch for Norwood EyeCare |
‘e Investor road shows and presentations for AIM and NASDAQ listings

Legal costs ~ major contributors to legal costs included:-
s London AIM Exchange Listing
TAP Pharmaceuticals Licensing Agreement
Norwood EyeCare Acquisition from CIBA Vision
Expansion of Monash University and Dr Richard Boyd Agreements
- General contracts and agreements -
Progressing US NASDAQ listing

Staff Costs -
o Staff costs increased as a result of the appointment of additional staff and executives in the United States, United
- Kingdom and Australia for LAD, EyeCare and Immunology,
» Significant costs associated with professional recruitment fees of Austrahan US and UK based management and
directors for Norwood Abbey (Corporate), Norwood Devices and Norwood Immunology

Travel (includes airfares and accommodation etc.)

- The following international activities required a significant amount of time to be spent in the U.S and the UK.
o TAP Agreement
. AlM listing
UK and US Investor programs
-EyeCare Acquisition
Commercialization of LAD and EyeCare
LAD Manufacturing transfer

Other Fees

_ . Audit and accounting costs for public Ilstmg of NIM on AIM and progressmg of NASDAQ hstmg for Norwood Abbey
o Audit costs for Quality Systems certification



NORWOOD ABBEY LIMITED

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKEI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004 |

Percentage change $000
Revenue from ordinary activities up' 344% to 1,934
Loss from ordinary activities after tax o : '
attributable to members w 58.56% to 14921 .
Profit (loss) from extraordinary items after tax .
attribu(table) to members Y gain(loss) of NIL-
Net loss for the period attributable to members up 58.56% to | 14,921
Dividends Amount per security - Franked amount per
Interim dividend Nil Nil
Previous corresponding period Nil Nil
Record date for determining entitlements to the dividend Not applicable

As at 30 June 2004 As at 30 June 2003
Net Tangible Assets Per Security $0.21 $0.19

Brief explanation of the figures reported above:

| Eaming per share for the year ended 30 June 2004 is a loss $0.11 (30 June 2003 a loss $0.08).

For further explanation of the reported figures see the attached financial statements and Directors declaration, which has been

subject to review by Norwood Abbey Limited independent auditors.




